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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Viraj Profiles Limited
" Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.  Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Viraj Profiles Limited
(“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries i.e. Sino Investment Global Limited, Gold Matrix
"~ Resource Pte Ltd and S C Tubinox S.A. (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March

2020, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive

Income), the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory mformatlon (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated fmancxal statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March 2020, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date. :

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements. in accordance with the -

Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

3. Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 51 to the accompanying consolidated financial statement which states

that the impact of COVID-19 pandemic situation remained insignificant and explains the
uncertainties and the management's -assessment of the financial impact due to the lockdown and

~ other restrictions related to the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessm\nt
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of the impact in the subsequent period is highly dependent upon circumstances as ?pﬁev{a e
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

4. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were |
~ addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in ,
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have }

determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

~ report.

Sr. | Key Audit Matter
No.

Auditor’s Response

A Cai‘rying valué, Useful life of the
Fixed Assets

Assessment of carrying value and
useful life of the fixed assets estimated
by technical team of the Company
which is in principally in line with the
useful life mentioned in Schedule 2 of
Companies Act, 2013.

Refer Note 2 of Consolidated Financial
Statements.. '

Our procedures in relation to the depreciable
lives of the property, plant and equipment
included:

e Testing the key controls over the
management’s judgment in relation to the
accounting estimates of the useful life of

- property, plant and equipment. ’

e The useful life Considered is in line with
industry practice and based on technical
evaluation.

e We assessed the Company’s process of
assessing the impairment requirement.

e We have also assessed the recoghition of
Cost of modification based on recognition
criterion given inrelevant Ind AS.

B | Expected Credit Loss on Trade
Receivable/Advances

The company has provided expected
credit loss based on judgement based
on past experience on trade receivable
based on principle prescribed in
relevant Ind AS and also assessed the
recoverability of advances given to
various suppliers and accordingly
provision with regard to Expected
Credit Loss/written off has been

Our procedures in relation to the Expected
Credit Loss on Trade Receivable / Advances
included:

e Testing with regard to trade receivable

" includes testing controls over billing and

collections including historical payment
pattern, ageing analysis, etc.

- o Test the completeness and accuracy of
the data.

ested the

e (Critically assessed and
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assessed and accounted for. significant  judgments used by
management based on past experience.
Refer Note 11 and 15 of Consolidated 8 P P ' ‘
Financial Statements. e Analyzing the key terms of contract with
customers to ascertain  provision |
required for expected credit loss.
o Reviewed key term of contracts for
advances. |
|
e Obtained confirmation on sample basis f
. Revnewed financial posmon of supplier {
in certain cases. ’ ;
C | Net Realizable Value (NRV) of Our procedures in relation to the Net Realizable |
' Inventories , value relating to Inventory included: |
|
The company has valued the e Assessing the compliance of company's i
inventories at lower of cost or NRV accounting policies over inventory with |
based on recent price trend of its applicable Indian accounting standards. ‘
principal raw material. The valuation _ , v |
of inventories related to property held * We assessed the Company’s process of |
for development and sale is carried out valuing the inventory particularly with Z
based on valuation reports. ~ regard to determine lower of cost or |
' ' _ NRV. '
Refer Note 10 of Consolidated
Financial Statements. e We have reviewed the estimation and
assumption taken into consideration.
e We have reviewed valuation reports
obtained relating to property held for
sale and development as part of
inventories.

5. Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon :

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s
Director’s Report, but does not include the consohdated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibi
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inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to state in this regard.

6. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of

~ Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, '
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statement that-
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management and respective Board of
Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. '

Those respective Board of Directors included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
- Group’s financial reporting process.

7. Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of’
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance w1th SAs, we exercise professional judgms

maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: A 3
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

- statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Holding Company and its subsidiary company which is company incorporated in India, if
any, has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention,in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation. "

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. :

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion. We communicate with those charged with governance: ~Holding
Company regardlng, among other matters, the planned scope and tlmlng//Qf addit.and
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significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we:
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

8. Other Matter

1. The financial statement of two subsidiaries, whose Financial statements reflect total assets of
‘Rs. 6,852.30 Lakhs as on 31 March 2020 and total revenues of Rs. 5 Lakhs for the year ended
on that date and net cash inflow of Rs. 129.85 Lakhs for the year ended on that date as
considered in consolidated financial statements, have not been audited either by us or by
other auditors. These unaudited financial statements have been furnished to us by the
management, and Our opinion on consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on such
unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to information and explanations
given to us by the management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our above opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on the legal and
regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the financial statements and ﬁnanc1al information certified by the
management.

2. The Ind AS financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2019, included in
these Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditors who
eexpressed their unmodified opinion on those statements on September 17, 2019.

9. Reporton Other Legai and Regulatory Requirements
a. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditors on Separate financial statements and other financial information

of subsidiary, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

i. We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon, have sought and obtained allwtvhve
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ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from

our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors:

ili. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
statement of other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements:

iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31t March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the holding
company, none of the directors of the Holding Company is dlsquallﬁed as on 31st March, 2020

from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

vi. With respect to the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Holding Company, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure-

A"

vi

other financial information of the subsidiary, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph:

i. The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pendmg
litigations on its Consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 42 to the

Consolidated financial statement;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts

including derivative contract during the year ended 31 March 2020.

iii. There were no amounts which were requlred to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

b. With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
_requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
informations and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the pI'OVlSlOIlS of the

Section 197 of the Act.

.With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the

Corporate / Regd. Office : B-30, Connaught Place, Kuthiala Building, New Delhi - 11000:1.O 'L& W@L
Phone : 43259900, Fax : 43259930, E-mail : delhi@trchadha.com : “33 5,

Branches at: s+ AHMEDABAD < BENGALURU < CHENNAI < GURGAON + HYDERABAD °’§ PPJ




i Klnadna & CO LLV

Chartered Accountants

502, Marathon Icon,

Off. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg

Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park
Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013
Tel.: 022-49669000 '
Fax.: 022-49669023

Email: mumbai@trchadha.com

Place: Mumbai
Date: 7t September 2020

M’DIN 20076650AAAACY1967

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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ANNEXURE A

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statement under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement of Viraj Profiles
Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the consohdated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to. us, the Holding

- Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
consolidated financial statement and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statement were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2020, based on, the internal control with
reference to financial statement criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Manégement’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls -

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on, “the internal control with reference to financial statement criteria established
by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013. :

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
‘Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audlt to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with refe ;
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statement was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statement and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
€error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statement. :

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statement

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statement is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to financial statement includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent leltatlons of Internal F1nanc1al ‘Controls with reference to consolldated ﬁnancnal
statement :

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statement to future periods are
subject to.the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statement
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. :

Other Matters

the internal control with reference to financial statement is restricted to the Holdmg Co

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and opérating ;}%e
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the subsidiaries of the Group are not required to report on the internal control w1th reference to financial

statement.
For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

x 6711N/N500028

Place: Mumbai ' , : ¢
Date:7t September 2020 - Membership No. 076650
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Corporate / Regd. Office : B-30, Connaught Place, Kuthiala Building, New Delhi ~ 110001
Phone : 43259900, Fax : 43259930, E-mail : delhi@trchadha.com

Branches at: % AHMEDABAD % BENGALURU < CHENNAI < GURGAON « HYDERABAD + PUNE + TIRUPATI




Viraj Profiles Limited ‘
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
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Notes - As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2015
I. Assets : ‘
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment ’ 2 90,073.00 97,956.52
Capital work-in-progress 2 2,234.95 963.36
Goodwill 498 1,640.09 1,640.09
Right of use assets 38 1,190.62
Intangible assets 3 10.94 19.90
Intangible assets under development. - 3 552.25 381.00
Investments in- joint ventures 4 - 4,321.55 .
Financial assets
[nvestments 5 3,033.48 5,164.91
Loans 6 230.00 315.28
Other financial assets 7 2,479.51 358.18 -
Deferred tax assets (net) 36 3,120.01 4,160.05
Income tax assets (net) 8 3,357.39 2,953.80
Other non-current assets 9 2,452.99 729.25
Total non current assets : 1,10,375.22 1,18,963.89
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,57,928.02 1,77,900.35
Fvihancia! assets .
" Trade receivables 11 32,180.73 35,640.74.
Cash and cash equivalents 12(a) 573.27 1,358.20 -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12(b) 11,643.26 16,735.90
Loans = _ , -13 311.29 2,374.86
Other financial assets 14 879.11 2,529.52
Other current assets 15 59,596.02 59,837.73
Total current assets 2,63,111.70 2,96,377.30
Total assets 3,73,486.92 4,15,341.19
I, Equity and liabilities
Equity ' : : ,
Equity share capital 16 14,175.49 14,175.49
Other equity v 17 1,35,204.05 1,31,394.76
Equity attributable to equity holders ofthe parent 1,49,379.53 1,45,570.25
Non-controlling interests 11.76 12.18
Total equity 1,49,391.29 1,45,582.43
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 1,002.09 4,937.49
Lease Liabilities 38 39.38 '
Provisions 19 4,487.22 2,402.91
Total non current liabilities. ’ 5,528.69 7,340.40




Viraj Profiles Limited

‘Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2020

. Notes referred above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For TR Chadha & Co. LLP .
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 006711N/N500028

PRAMO D g}l’g[;t;lly signed

TILWANI Titswan

Pramod Tilwani
Partner
Membership No: 7665¢

Mumbai
Date: 7 September 2020°
UDIN : 206366 SDAAAA cYI196F

- Mumbai

Notes As at 31 March 2019
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities o .
Borrowings 20 1,26,080.27 1,57,712.07 .
Lease Liabilities - 38 1,203.37 -
Trade payables 21
a) total-outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 1,387.98 - 1,207.19
enterprises : ' .
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 66,865.48 69,740.16
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities. 22 18,016.32 24,407.18
Other current liabilities 23 ’ 3,729.40 3,746.56 -
Provisions 24 474.57 515.25
Income tax liabilities (net) 25 .809.53 5,089.94
Total current liabilities ' 2,18,566.94 2,62,418.35
Total liahilities 2,24,095.63 2,69,758.76
Total equity and liabilities 3,73,486.92 4,15,341.19
'Significant accounting pdlfcies 1
Notes.to-the consolidated financial statements 1-53

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Viraj Profiles Limited

" CIN: U28113MH1996PLC096835.
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Chairman and Managing Director
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Anuj Jain

Chief Financial Officer
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BAJAJ 22:02:28 +05'30'
Pawankumar. G. Bajaj
Director
DIN: 08674519
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120200907

KHANv H
Ta_uqeer Khan
Company Secretary
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Vira} Profifes Limited
Consalidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees'in Lukhs)

Notes For the Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2014
Revenue
Revenue from.operations 26 5,42,965.80 5,99,920.89
Other incomé 7 . 6,816.27 24,012.21
Total Income: 5,49,781,06 6,23,933.10
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 28 3,62,408.79 3,75,871.30
Lhanges in inventories of finished goods, stockin trade and workin 79 15,348.77 41,758.4%
{Jl’OCGSS
Employee benefits expenses 30 26,161.30 2261588
Finance costs . 31 12,720.22 21,339.94
Depreciation and amortization expenses 32 | 12,855,989 14,518.39
Other.expenses 33 1,28,267,11 1,28,645.38
Total expenses 5,37,757.18 6,04,505.34 |
Prafit Before exceptiond! items and tax 12,023.88 19,3872.76
Provigion forimpairmient of property, plant.ang eguia™ents s 49 - 3,688.48
Provision forimpairment of lavestment 7.75 -
-Profit befare tax 12,016.13 15,699.27
Tax gxpense; :
Current tax 3,899.65 4,850.89
Deferred tax 1,537.70 864.35
‘Adjustment of tax for earller years - (758.62)
Profit for the year 6,578.77 10,642.65
Other comprehensive income 34
Items'that will riot be reclassified to-profit or Joss
Remeasurements of the employee deflned benefit plans {1,125.15} 124.35
Equity Instruments through Other. Comprehensive income {2,123.67) (367.62)
Income tax refated to items thatwill not be reclassified to '497.67 (6.33)
profit or loss :
Exchange differences in translating financial statements of (18.79) 775.88
foreign operations
(2,769.84) 526,29
Total comprehensive-Income forthe year 3,808.83 11,168.94
Profit attribuitable to: .
Ownérs of the-Company . §,579.23 10,643.01
Non-controlling interests {0.,45) {0.36}
Other comprehensive Income attributable to: ’
QOwners of the. Company {2,769.94) 526.29
Non-controllinginterests - -
Total comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 3,809,28 11,169.31
Non-controlling interests ) {0.45) {0.36}
-Earnings per equity share 35
-Baslc (in Rupees) 0.46 0.75
‘Diluted {in Rupees) 0.46 a.75
‘Notes to the consolidated financlal statements 1-53
. -Notes referred above forin.an Integral part of the standalone financlal statements
As per-our report of even date attached.
For TR Chadha &Co. LLP For and'on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants. Vira} Profiles Limited
Firm's Registration No: 116231W/W-100024 e CIN: U28133MH1996PLCOD6835
PRAMOD Dgtitysioned o S
TILWANI v - RN e
Pramod Tlwani Neeraj R. Kochhar Pawankumar G. Baja)
Partner Chalrman and Monoging Director Director
Membership No: 76650 DIN: 00115140 DIN: 08674519
Mumbai r— AR
U DlN c LDO ?6650 AA[&A’C\{ \ 3 é‘}- :;;::j %:;;%’Q}:. RKHAN ;‘:«zﬁwm\;
Aniflaln Taugeer Khan
Chief Financlal Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai . M NO:A39951

Date: 7 September 2020




Viraj Profiles Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

For the year ended

31 March 2019

31 March 2020
Cash flow from operating activities '

Profit before tax o ' ' 12,016.13 15,699.27
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash used in operating activities
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ©12,855.99 14,518.39
Mark to market loss on derivative contracts 1,743.95 {4,099.08)
Finance cost {including fair value change in financial instrumehts) ] 12,568.88 20,761.20
Interest income ’ - : ) (3,038.33) {1,582.90)
Provision for doubtful advances and trade receivables . ' : 888.71 59.73
Lease right equalisation as per IND AS : 151.34 -
Power and fuel _ - 2,327.15
Straightlining of Processing Charges es per IND AS . ' 28.27 41.60
interest income straightlining as per IND AS : ' - -
{Profit) / loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment _ _ ' (26.68) (19.12)
Profit on sale of investments ' , } ' - (591.59) (2,250.92)
Unrealised gain on account of foreign exchange ) ) : 2,466.96 (1,748.88)
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and goodwill ' 7.75 3,688.48
Provision for employee benefits _ {1,125.15) -
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve , (18.79) 775.88
o ) 37,927.44 48,170.80
Working capital adjustments ] o
Inventories ' : - ' 19,972.34 60,117.05
Trade receivables o : _ 3,399.21 15,267.62
Other financial assets - 82249 (225.55)
Other assets - , 241.70 20,507.47
Loans , v . 2,148.85 - 2,394.10
Trade payables - o ' (5,160.82) 40,675.83
Other financial liabilities ‘ : ' 2,865.19° (21,997.78)
Other liabilities . . B : (1,761.11) (9,10.74)
Provisions : ‘ ‘ 2,043.63 {166.68)
) 62,498.92 1,55,582.12
Income Tax paid ‘ : ‘ : (8,583.64) (2,970.74)
Net cash flows from operating activities ‘ o : . ‘ 53,915.28 1,52,611.38
Cash flow from investing activities ‘ ' S
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment ' : : (7,179.70} {2,595.,35)
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment o 113.11 . 29.84
Lease Rental : (1,136.00) -
_Purchase of investments ’ . v - (5,215.47)
. Proceeds from Sales of Investments ' . . 4,913.14 8,258.13
Movement on sale of Subsidiaries , ' : - (4,960.56)
Interest received . 3,038.33 1,582.90
Margin money deposit - 5,092.63 7,159.97
Deposit with maturity of more than twelve months ‘ ' (2,121.33) (358.18)
Net cash flows from investing activities . ' 2,720.19 ~ 3,901.29
Cash flow from financing activities - : : ' ,
Increase/(reduction) in non- controlling interest . , ‘ ) L. 0.78
Proceeds from loans and borrowings . . . - 3,712
Repayment of long term loans and borrowings i (13,191.45) ~ {23,259.87)
Repayment of short term loans and borrowings o ' (31,631.80) (1,23,934.97)
Interest paid ‘ v (12,597.15) (20,761.20)
Net cash flows from financing activities - ' ' {57,420.40) (1,64,242.76)
Net-increase / (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents ‘ ’ ' . (784.93) (7,730.09)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 12(a)) ’ : 1,358.20 9,088.29
1,358.20

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 12(a)) _ o . 573.27
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Viraj Profiles Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) -

For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7
Opening balances

Long-term borrowing : _ ' 14,225.79 55,657.08
Short-term borrowing 1,57,712.07 2,80,124.57
Movements

Long-term borrowing ) ' (13,219.72} (41,472.89)
Short-term borrowing v {31,631.80) {1,32,412.50)

Closing balances

Long-term borrowing S 1,034.34 14,225.79
Short-term borrowing : 1,26,080.27 1,57,712.07
Notes:

{i) Cash Flow Statement has been ‘prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - “Cash Flow Statements" prescrlbed under the
Companies Act (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 under the Companies Act, 2013

(if) Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment includes movements of Capital Work-in-Progress (mcludmg Caputal Advances) and Capital
Expenditure Creditors during the year :

Notes to the consolidated financial statements - refer Note 1-53
Notes referred above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For T R Chadha & Co. LLP : ‘ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants ’ - Viraj Profiles Limited

Firm's Registration No: 116231W/W-100024 . ) . . CIN: U28113MH1996PLC096835
PRAMOD. 5;9,,'2:%), o :/E\‘IIE,}\?AJ Ezé:%%sm ‘ ;IAAVXANKU 3?:'::;::
TILWANI-£H0%0 o KOCHHAR o S s
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Pramod Tilwani \\ Neeraj R. Kochhar : Pawankumar G. Bajaj

Partner Chairman and Managing Director Director
Membership No: 76650 DiN: 00115140 _ " DIN: 08674519
Mumbai anuj Qs ‘ o . TAUQEES e
o ~ 4 . Dot 2000967 e, mmm
Date 7 SEPtEmber 2020 /N N - jain 2T 030 - R KHAN 22054040530
UDIN : 2.00F6650 AR AR G‘( | - e g : Anuj Jain . Taugeer Khan
) Chief Financial Officer fompany Secretary
Mumbai M No: A39951

Date: 7 September 2020 W
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Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note-1

A. General Information
Viraj Profiles Limited (VPL) was orlgmally formed under the name of "Vlraj Gases Limited"” on
2 February 1996. VPL is predominantly engaged in production and export of value added
stainless steel long products to more than 80 countries. VPL's engineering products have
wide applications across diverse industries including petrochemical plants, oil pipelines, real
estate, ships, food processing, structural design, high tensile springs and Cables, boilers,
pressure vessels, liquid storage terminals, liquid cargo ships and surgical instruments.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company, its subsidiaries and joint
venture (collectively the ‘Group’ and individually ‘Group companies’).

The details of the subsidiaries and step down subsidiaries consolidated are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries Parent. Principal | % of shareholding and Voting
Company | place of ‘power held as at
business :
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Viraj USA INC. VPL USA Refer . Note | 100%
. 48A

Sino Investment Global Limited | VPL - British 100% 100%
(siGL) Virgin

Island
Gold Matrix Resource Pte Ltd | SIGL Singapore | 100% _ 100%
(GMRPL)
S C Tubinox S.A. SIGL Romania | 99.50% 99.50%

The details of joint venture that were accounted under equity method of accounting are as

follows
Name | of  Joint | Country of |% of shareholding and Voting power
Venture incorporation held as at

31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
M/s Devbhoomi India Refer Note 48 60%

Significant accounting policies

B. Basis of preparation

a) The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) [Companies.
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for |ssue by the Board of Directors on 7th
September 2020. S




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

c) The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost- basis except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value :
1. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
2. Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Defined benefit plans — plan assets meastired at fair value

d) Functional and presentatlon currency: :
These financial statements are presented in INR, which is the Company s functional currency.
All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs.

e) Current and non-current classification : :
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
1. Expected to be realised or mtended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle;
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period :

w

All other assets are classified as non-current. -

A liability is current when:
1. ltis expected to be settled in normal operatmg cycle;
2. Itjs held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at Ieast
twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equnvalents The Group has identified twelve months as |ts
operating cycle.

f) Basis of consolidation

Accounting for subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity
when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany
transactlons balances and unrealised gams on transactlons between group companles are




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsrdlanes have been :
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Non-controlling interests (NCl)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable asset at the
date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Non-controlling interest is
presented separately from the liabilities or assets and the equity of the shareholders in the
consolidated Balance Sheet. Non- controllmg interest in the profit or loss of the Group is
separately presented.

Equity accounted investee _

The Group’s interests in equity accounted investees include interest in a joint venture. A
joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the
net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for. its
liabilities.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially
recognised at cost which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of profit or loss and OCI of
equity accounted investees until the date on which significant mﬂuence or joint control
ceases.

Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. Unrealised gain on transactions
between the Group and its Joint Ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.

g) Business Combination v

As part of its transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to apply the relevant Ind AS, viz. Ind

AS 103, Business Combinations, to only those business combinations that occurred on or.
after 1 April 2015. In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts for these business |
combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The

consideration transferred for the business combination is generally measured at fair value as

at the date the control is acquired (acquisition date), as are the net identifiable assets

acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Transaction costs are

expensed as incurred, except to the extent related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-

existing relationships with the acquiree. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or

loss.

h) Revenue from contract with customer

Sale of goods :

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange
for those goods.




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

have been shipped or delivered to the specific location as the case may be, the risks of loss
has been transferred, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied. Sale of products included related ancillary services, if any.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted
for volume discounts, rebates, .price concessions and returns, if any, as specified in the
contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of
the government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the
most likely method) based on accumulated experience and underlying schemes and
agreements with customers. Due to the short nature of credit period given to customers,
there is no financing component in the contract.

© Service Income
Income recognition for services takes place as and when the services are performed in
accordance with Ind AS 115.

Interest income v :
For all financial instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘OCI’), interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the same is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend. : :

Export benefits

Export incentives principally comprises of beneflts under Merchandise Export from India
Scheme. The benefits under these incentive schemes are available based on the guideline
formulated for respective schemes by the government authorities. These ‘incentives are
recognized as revenue on accrual basis to the extent it is probable that realization is certain.

i} Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at acquisition cost of the items less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss. Acquisition cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to getting the asset
ready for intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Items of spare parts that meet the definition of ‘property, plant and equipment’ have been

recognised as property, plant and equipment. The depreciation on such an item of spare

part will begm when the asset is avallable for use i.e. when it is'in the location and condition
in by management. In case




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the consohdated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

~ of a spare part, as it may be readily avallable for use, it may be depreciated from the date of
purchase of the spare part

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any. All
the direct expenditure related to implementation including incidental expenditure incurred
during the period of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is accounted as
Capital work in progress (CWIP) and after commissioning the same is transferred / allocated
to the respective item of property, plant and equipment.

Pre-operating costs, being indirect in nature, are expensed to the statement of profit and
loss as and when incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal
or when retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant
and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

Trans:tlon to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its.
property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1: April 2015 measured as per the Previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using the written down method
based on the useful life of the assets as estimated by the management and is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss as per the requirements of Schedule I of the Act, except for
leasehold improvements, which are amortized over the lease period. The estimate of the
useful life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice which considered the
nature of the asset, the usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the operating
conditions of the asset, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance support, etc. The useful lives so determined are as follows: -

Assets Estimated useful life
(in years)
Leasehold land . Lease period
Leasehold improvement Lease period
Factory building ‘ 30
Other than factory building ‘60
Plant and equipment 8-20
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipment 5-10
Computers : 6
Vehicles - - 810
Aircraft 20-25

Depreciation on items of property, plan'r and equipment acquired / disposed off during the
year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal. Cost of
" lease-hold land is amortized equally over the period of lease.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,- if.
appropriate. Q@OH(@ .




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

i} Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic beneﬁts that
are attributable to the assets WI|| flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be .
measured reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and  accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Goodwill : ~

Goodwill is initially recognised based on the accounting policy for business comblnatlons
(refer note 1.B (g)).

This asset is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually.

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Intangible assets are amortised in statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated useful _
lives based on underlying contracts where apphcable The useful life so determined are as
follows: :

Assets Amortisation period
Software , 7-8 years

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

k) Impairment of non-financial assets : :

The Group assesses, at.each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired.. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable

amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s (CGU) fair value less costs of

disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely mdependent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its

recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount. :

Recoverable amount is determined:
1. In case of individual asset, at higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use;
and
2. In case of cash-generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified,
independent cash flows), at the higher of the cash-generating unit's fair value less
cost to sell and the value in use. : :

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks spec:flc to the asset In determlnlng fair value less costs of
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identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators. -

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, ‘including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued
with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised
in OCl up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset {or cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the
increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying ‘value that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in

prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss-

immediately. -

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 March and when circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing
the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGU’s) to which the goodwill relates.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

Leases ' ‘ - :
A contract is or contains, alease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Company as a Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To

assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the

Company assesses whether:

1. The contract involves the use of an identified asset. ‘ _

2. The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease; and ’

3. The Company has the right tb,direct the use of asset.

As the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use-asset
(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Certain Lease arrangement includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these optlons when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The of rightfof-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payment made prior to the commencement date
of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-to-use assets ‘are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount
is determined forthe Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the assets belong.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments. are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. '

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease
being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been. separately presented in the respective Note and
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operatlng lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantialiy all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as'a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. : '

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17
Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It
introduces a single, on- balance sheet lease accountlng model for Iessees The Company has



Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

m)

of use assets equal to lease liability option, recognised on the date of initial application (April
1, 2019). Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or

sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in -

the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the
Group incursin connection with the borrowing of funds.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost/deemed cost
applied on transition to Ind AS, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an
impairment provision is recognised, if required immediately to its recoverable amount. On
disposal of such investments, difference between the net dlsposal proceeds and carrying
amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. :

Financial instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. ' :

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value
or as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement c
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
1. Financial assets at amortised cost
2. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
3. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
4. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensnve income
(‘FVTOCI’) '

Financial asset at amortised cost '
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
1. The asset is held within a business model whose. objectlve is to hold -assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and
2. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specnfled dates to cash’ flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method Amortised cost is ca|culated by taking

’ HEY ,;
MilBAl -
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losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables. :

Financial asset at FVTOCI
A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
1. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and
2. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

‘Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). '

Financial instrument at FVTPL :

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt mstrument which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL

In addition, a Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with vaII_
changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. '

Equity investments Other than Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures -
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other

equity instruments, Group has taken an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of
the amounts from OCI to the Statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. '

De-recognition : »

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar"
financial assets) is primarily derecogmsed (i.e. removed from the Groups balance sheet)
when:

1. The rights {o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or .

2. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or '

b) the Group. has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
‘rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. '
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When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained. : '

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the followmg
1. Financial asséts measured at amortised cost;
2. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCH);

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
1. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those
- - default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date); or

2. Full time expected credit Iosses (expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events ovér the life of the financial instrument). "

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
1. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
2. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credrt risk: Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

The Group follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments-
for recognition-of impairment loss allowance. The épplication of simplified approach does
not require the Group to track changes in credit risk of trade receivable. The Groupcalculates
the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its
historical credit loss experience.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation: for various financial
instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the
asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce |mpa|rment allowance from the

ross carrying amount. e e :
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Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented asa provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable SIgnlﬁcant increases in credlt risk to be identified on a
timely basis. :

The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evudences a residual mterest in the assets of the
Company-after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowmgs
including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2. Loans and borrowings measured on amortised cost basis
3. Financial guarantee contracts

_Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include fmancnal hablhtles held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. ’ ’

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credlt risk are recognlzed in OCI These galn loss are not subsequently transferred
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to the Statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulatlve gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at FVTPL.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest- -bearing loans anhd borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is dlscharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the -
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

C. Off-setting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported m the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to reallse the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

D. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to

hedge its foreign currency risks. ' .

Such derivative financial instruments are |n|t|ally recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial

liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken dlrectly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as
basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of
a non-financial asset or non-financial liability. : :

Premium/Discount, in respect of forward foreign exchange contract, is recognised in the
profit and loss on the date of entering into contract. Exchange differences on such contracts
are recognised in the Statement of Profit-and Loss in the period in which the exchange rate
changes. Profit/Loss on cancellatlon / renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as
income/expense.

) Government grants
Government grants are recognlsed where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
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r)

expense item are recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Taxes

Current income tax '

Current income tax assets and liabilities are ‘measured at the amount expected 1o be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on the rates and tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the entity operates and
generates taxable income.

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or
directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes:
provisions where appropriate. '

Deferred tax ‘
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their corresponding
carrying amounts for the financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect
of: '

1. deductible temporary differences;

2. the carry forward of unused tax losses; and

3.  the carry forward of unused tax credits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Inventories
a) Inventories which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods; stock-

in-trade / property held for development and sale, stores and spares, loose tools
and are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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b) Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

c) In determining the cost, first in first out cost method is used. In the case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress, fixed production overheads are
allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

d) Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. ' ‘

e) The net realizable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the
selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for
use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost except in
cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the

_finished products will exceed their net realisable value.
f) The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

g) Stores and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred - in-
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined -
at lower of cost and net realisable value. In determining the cost, first in first out
cost method is used. ltems of spare parts that does not meet the definition of
‘property, plant and equipment’ has to be recognised as a part of inventories. '

s) Employee benefits

Retirement and other employee benefits
i. Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and pension fund are a defined
contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the standalone statement of
profit and loss of the period when the employee renders related services. There are no other
obligat'ions other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities.

ii. Defined benefit plan

Gratuity liability for eligible employees are defined benefit obligation-and are provided for
on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of
each financial year. Obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash
flows using discounted rate that is determined by reference to market yields at the balance
sheet date on Government Securities where the currency and terms of the Government
Securities are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the -defined benefit
obligation. : '

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the standalone statement of
profit and loss in subsequent periods. '

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and ‘
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or -
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and Iosses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences :

Compensated absences which accrue to employees and which can be carried to future
periods but are expected to be encashed or availed in twelve months immediately following
the year end are reported as expenses during the year in which the employees perform the
services that the benefit covers and the liabilities are reported at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits after deducting amounts already paid. Where there are restrictions on
availment of encashment of such accrued benefit or where the availment or encashment is
otherwise not expected to wholly occur in the next twelve months, the liability on account
of the benefit is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method.

t) Cash and cash equlvalents :
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which-are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

u) Segment accounting: _
The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business
Segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource aIIocatlon and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is
measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

The - Operatlng segments have been identified on the basis of the neture‘ of
products/services. ' '

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting
policies of the Group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment.assets and segment
liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating
activities of the segment. Inter Segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions
which are primarily determined based on market/fair value factors. Revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocated to segments
on a reasonable basis have been included under "unallocated revenue / expenses / assets /
liabilities". :

v) Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments: .

General-

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an msurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
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separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to
a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax -rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost. »

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: :

1. A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;

2. A present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;

3. A possible obhgatlon arising from the past events, unless the probability of outflow of
resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are revnewed at each
balance sheet date.

w) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as Compulsory Convertible
Debentures, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

x) Use of estimates and judgments

The presentation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Ind AS which
requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Such estimates and assumptions are based on management's
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The
actual outcome may differ from these estimates. -

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have-a significant risk of
resulting in a' material adjustment within the next financial year are included is in respect of
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, expected credit loss,
Current/ Deferred tax expense, provisions and contingent liabilities, fair value measurements
of financial instruments, impairment losses on investments, retirement benefit obllgatlons
and Estimation of uncertalntles relating to COVID 19 as dlscussed below: '
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at
the end of each reporting: perlod This reassessment may result in change in depreCIatlon and
amortisation expense in future periods.

Expected Credit loss

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and
determining whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered
include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future
payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Current/ Deferred tax expense
The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event
and it is probable that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in-
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet :
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent |Iab||ltIeS are not
_recogmsed in the financial statements.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is-measured
using valuation techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair value. Judgements include -considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment losses on investments

The Company estlmates the falr value / value in usé of the investment in subs:d:anes at each .
balance sheet date.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations -

The Group's retirement benefit obligations are subject to number of judgements including
discount rates, inflation and salary growth. Significant judgements are required when setting
these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a significant impact on the
amount recorded in the Company’s balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss. The
Company sets these judgements based on previous expernence and third party actuarlal
advice. :

Estimation of uncertainties relating to COVID-19

In view of the impact of COVID-19, the Group has assessed the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment, right- of-use assets, intangible assets, inventories, trade receivables,
\nvestments and other flnanc1al assets. In assessipg-the recoverable value of such assets the
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Comp_/‘agn/\/ has considered various internal and external information such as existing long-term
‘)% arrangements with customer and vendor partners, long-term business plan, cash flow

forecasts and possible future uncertainties in economic conditions because of the pandemic
Q@‘?}‘ including lockdowns and supply chain dlsruptlons :

As per the Group’s current assessment of recoverability of these assets, no significant impact
on carrying amounts of these assets is expected.

The eventual outcome of the impact of the global health pandemic may be- different from
those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements and the Group
continues to closely monitor the situation including any material changes to future economic
conditions and consequential impact on its financial statements.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
judgments, namely determination of control of subsidiaries and joint arrangement,
determination of functional currency of foreign operations which have the most significant
effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements. '

y) Statement of cash flows _ :
Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals of accruals of past or
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operatmg, investing and finance
activities of the Group are segregated

z) Foreign currency translation and transactions

(1) Foreign exchange transactions

items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is, Parent’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statement of each entity are measured using that
functlonal currency.

Transactlons and balances :

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average approximates
the actual rate at the date of the transaction. '

Monetary assets and liabilities' denominated in foreign. currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or Ioss are also recognised in OCI or profit or

ck\?* %

CE{ MU

o\




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(2) Foreign operations

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency ofa
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentatlon ,
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet : :

e Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions), and

e All resulting exchange differences are recognlsed in other comprehensive income.
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are

* reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

e Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a forelgn operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operatlon and translated at the
closing rate.

aa) Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial mstruments such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:
1. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
2. Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset-or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and mmlmlsmg the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

1. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets

or Liabilities.

2. - Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
P e the fair value measurement is directly or mdrrectly observable.
P -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

3. Llevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
“the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,

the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. ‘

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted financial
assets. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Valuation
Committee after discussion with and approval by the management. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence .and whether professional standards are
maintained. Valuers are normally rotated every three years. The management decides, after
discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to
use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets
and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in
the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation. '

The management, in conjunction with the Group's external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to
determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or. Ilablhty and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarize accountmg policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.
1. Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estlmates and assumptlons (note 39).
2. Quantitative disclosures.of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 39).
3. : Investment in unquoted equity shares (discontinued operations) (note 39).
4. Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 39).

New and amended Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, has not notified the new and amendments to Ind ASs which the Group has to applied
as they are effective from April 1, 2020.
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Viraj Profiles Limited . ,
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 3 - Intangible assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Intangible assets for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March

2019:
. Computer
. Description ‘
. esernptio Software
Cost as at 1 April 2018 (A) 132.77
Additions
Deletions -

" |Cost as at 31 March 2019 (B) 132.77
Additions -
Deletions -
Cost as at 31 March 2020 (C) 132.77
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2018 (D) 100.60
Amortisation for the period 12.16
Deletions S ) -
Exchange Difference/Adjustment on Consolidation. 0.11
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2019 (E) '+ 112.87
Amortisation for the period 8.96
Deletions » ‘ : -
Exchange Difference/Adjustment on Consolidation.. -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2020 (F) 121.83
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 (B) - (E) 19.90

-|Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 (C) - (F) 10.94
Intangible assets under development -
Opening Balance 381.00 |
Add: Additions 171.25
Less: Deletions -
Closing Balance

552.25
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{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

As at

(refer note no 46)

Particulars Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Note 4
Investment in joint venture
Investment in partnership firm - M/s Dev Bhoomi (Refer note 47 & 48) - 4,321.55
- 4,321.55
Note 5
Non-current financial investments
Investment in equity - quoted (FVTOCI) .
20,000 (Previous year: 20,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up in 9.75. 9.52
Ladderup Finance Limited * »
7,103,332 {Previous year:.7,103,332) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up in 3,033.12 5,157.02
JSW Energy Limited
Investment in government or trust securities
National savings certificates 0.10 0.10
Investment in equity - unquoted (FVTOCI) .
200 (Previous year: 200) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in The Kapo! Co- 0.02 0.02
operative Bank Limited * '

. 80,000 (Previous year: 80,000) eqmty shares of Rs. 10 each, fully pald up in Rosy 8.00 8.00
Mercantile Limited * ) -
10,000 (Previous year: 10,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up in Super 2.50 250
Forging Limited * »

253 (Previous year: 253) equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up in Tarapur 0.25 0.25
Environment Protection Society B
: 10.77 10.77
* Less: Provision for impairment . (20.27) (12.50)
3,033.48 - 5,164.91
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof : 3,042.87 '5,166.54
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments . 10.87 10.87
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments (20.27) (12.50)
: 3,033.48 5,164.91
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Particulars - _ : As at : , As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Note 6

" Non-current financial Assets - loans

Security deposits

to parties other than related parties . :

- considered good ' ' 214.00 315.28

- Credit impaired . 67.46 - 30.41
to related parties _ ' ' '
~ considered good _ : 16.00 ’ -
- Credit impaired : - -
o o 297.45 345.69
Less: Loss allowances : 67.46 30.41
230.00 315.28
230.00 ) 315.28
Note 7
Non-current financial assets - Others
Fixed Deposit with Bank : ‘ " 2,479.51 358.18
(Margin money deposit with maturity of more than twelve months from reporting :
: date)
’ 2,479.51 358.18

1. Fixed deposits includes Rs.2,479.51 Lakhs and Rs. 358 18 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 respectively, under
lien with banks towards bank guarantee and letter of credit opened on overseas and local suppllers and margin money on exports bills
discounted.

Note 8

Income tax assets (net) : o
income tax receivable (net of provisions of tax Rs. 13,653.47 Lakhs; Previous year 3,357.39 2,953.80
13,653.47 Lakhs) : . : B ' '

3,357.39 2,953.80

‘Note 9

Other non-current assets

{Unsecured, Considered good) . _ ) :

Capital advances ' © 2,452.99 ' 729.25

Prepaid expenses . . : - .
- 2,452.99 : 729.25

- Note 10

Inventories :
(Valued at cost or Net Realisable Value whlchever is lower) . S
Raw Materials (includes goods in transit of Rs.4,618.25 lakhs as on 31 March 2020 : 7,696.83 12,962.91
and Rs. 8,807.00 lakhs as on 31 March 2019) : ]
Work-in-process ' ' : 17,835.63 - 15,877.43 -
Finished goods (includes goods in transit of Rs. 24,356.28 lakhs as on 31 March. : 59,990.24 49,692.79
2020 and Rs.21,959.11 lakhs as on 31 March 2019) ' : : ,
Stock-in-trade - property held for development and sale . . _ ) ‘ 64,453.51 92,052.92
Consumable stores and spares 7,951.81 7,314.30

: 1,57,928.02 1,77,900.35 .

1. Packing credit, cash credit facility and short-term loan from bank are secured by first paripassu charge on mventones (mcludnng raw
material, finished goods and work-in-progress) and book debts (refer note 12 and 20)

2 The cost of inventories recognlsed as an expense. 3,96,513.78_ 4,30,086.80
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Particulars ' As at As at
: ' 31 March 2020 "31 March 2019

‘Note 11
Trade receivables _ '
- Considered good - Unsecured , - . - 32,180.74 35,640.74
- Significant increase in credit risk . . - -
- Credit impaired : : . 16910 108.30

} . 32,349.83 ' 35,749.03
Less: Loss allowance . 169.10 108.30 .
o ' 32,180.73 35,640.74
Trade receivables includes : )
Other receivables S , _ ’ : 32,180.73 35,640.74

' 32,180.73 35,640.74

1. The Group exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 39.

2. Packing credit, cash credit facnhty and short-term loan from bank are secured by first parlpassu cha rge on inventories (mcludmg raw
material, finished goods and-work-in-progress) and book debts (refer note 12 and 20).

Note 12(a)
Cash and cash equivalents
- In current account : . ) ) 563.72 1,347.84
Cashi on hand , . ‘ - ' 9.55 10.36.
573.27 , 1,358.20
Note 12(b)
Other bank balances .
Deposits for margin money with banks with original maturity more than three o . 11,643.26 -16,735.90
month but less than twelve month . .
11,643.26 16,735.90

Notes:

1. Fixed deposits |ncludes Rs.11,643.26 Lakhs and Rs. 16,735.90 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 respectively,.
under lien with banks towards bank guarantee and letter of credlt opened on overseas and local suppliers and margm money on exports bills
discounted. :

Note 13
Current loans )
Security deposit _ -
- other than related parties - ’ 35.60 75.41
- related parties : . ] ] 85.16 i
Advances to employees {Unsecured, considered good) . . : 190.52 2,299.45
' ' : 311.29 2,374.86
Note 14
Other current financial assets , , : ' '
Claim receivable from banks ‘ ' o . 152.05 662.02
Interest accrued on deposits and loans and advances ’ » : . 603.51. -
Mark to market Profit on derivative contracts ) ) : : 123.55 1,867.50

879.11 2,529.52
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Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Note 15

Other current assets
Prepaid expenses

Export benefits receivable

Balances with excise, customs and sales tax authorities - considered good

Balances with excise, customs and sales tax authorities - considered doubtful |

‘Less: Balances with excise, customs and sales tax authorities - provision for
doubtful

Advances for supply of goods and services - considered good*
Advances for supply of goods and services - considered doubtful

Less: Advances for supply of goods and services —.prbvis'ion for considered doubtful

*Details of advances from companies/firms in which a dlrector of the Company is a director or partner

Vaishno Megamovers LLP

Viraj Infrastructure Limited

Vaishno Logistics (P) Ltd

Nitya Processor LLP (Erstwhile Viraj Wrapping LLP)

715.05 883.08
4,448.77 4,222.78
-9,465.03 11,532.60

27.53 27.53
9,492.55 11,560.13
27.53 27.53
9,465.03 11,532.60
44,967.18 43,199.27
878.36 87.49
45,845.54 43,286.76
878.36 87.49
44,967.18 43,199.27
59,596.02 59,837.73
20,081.83 14,556.05
-  6.49
78.80 .78.80
3,055.69 -
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Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Note 16 ’
Share Capital
_a Authorised
Equity shares of Re. 1/- each ) )
1,801,000,000 (Previous year 1,801,000,000) equity shares 18,010.00 18,010.00
: ' 18,010.00 18,010.00
b Issued, subscribed and paid up
1,417,548,612 (Previous year 1,225,060,898) equity shares fully paid up 14,175.49 '12,250.61
Add: Nil (Previous year 192,487,714 Shares Issued during the year on Conversion - 1,924.88
" of Convertible Debenture ( refer note "i" below) )
14,175.49 14,175.49
¢ Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :
Equity share : :
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,41,75,48,612 1,22,50,60,898
192,487,714 Shares Issued during the year 2018-19 on Conversion of Convertible Debenture : - 19,24,87,714
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,41,75,48,612 1,41,75,48,612

d Terms / rights attached to each classes of shares

Terms/ rlghts attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with voting rights having a par value of Re 1 per share. Each holder of equrty shares is entltled to
one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dlrectors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dwrdend :
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the shareholders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

e Shares in respect of each class in the Company held by its holdmg company or its ultimate holdmg company including shares held by subsidiaries or

* associates of the holding company or the uitimate! holdmg company in aggregate.

'‘As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

: No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Bhoomika Financial Services Private Limited, the holding 1,03,15,91,295 10,315.91 1,03,15,91,295 10,315.91
company . :

'f Sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company is set out below:
Equity share . As at 31 March 2020 ] " As at 31 March 2019
No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

Bhoomika Financial Services Private Limited 1,03,15,91,295 72.77% 1,03,15,91,295 72.77%
Neeraj Kochhar ) ' - 10,28,94,381 7.26% 10,28,94,381 7.26%
Renu Kochhar 8,73,12,893 - 6.16% 8,73,12,893 - 6.16%
Vaishno Logistics Private Limited 11,44;27,101 . 8.07% 11,44,27,101 8.07%
Shakunta Edu Com LLP - . 8,06,66,962 '5.69% 8,06,66,962 5.69%

g No shares have been allotted without payment being received in cash or by way of bonus shares during the period of five years |mmed|ately

preceding the Balance Sheet date.

"h Pursuant to the resolution passed at the Board meeting held on 7th April 2017, the Company has bought back 4,81,00,000 equity shares at Rs. 2.25
. each during year 2017- 18 The Company has transferred Rs. 4,81,00,000 to Capltal redemption reserve under the requrrements of the Companies

Act 2013.

i Pursuant to the resolution passed at the Board meeting held on 30th March 2019, the Company has issued 171 654,381 equlty shares of Re. 1 each
at a premium of Rs. 7.90 Per equity Shares to the holder of 0% compulsorily convertible debenture and 20,833,333 equnty of Re. 1 each ata
premium of Rs. 9.56 per equity shares to the holder of 4% compulsorily convertrble debenture during year 2018-19.




Viraj Profiles Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Note 17
Other equity
Capital reserve .
At the beginning of the year and at end of the year '6,475.95 6,475.95
At the end of the year 6,475.95 . 6,475.95
Securities premium reserve
At the beginning of the year 25,571.38 10,019.02 -
Add: Addition/(deletion) during the year - 15,552.36
At the end of the year 25,571.38 25,571.38 .
Capital redemption reserve ,
At the beginning of the year 481.00 481.00
‘At the end of the year 481.00 ~ 481.00
General reserve 4
At the beginning of the year and at end of the year 1,056.83 1,056.83
At the end of the year 1,056.83 - 1,056.83

~ Retained earnings ‘
At the beginning of the year 1,00,548.64 89,905.99
Add: Addition during the year . 6,579.23 10,642.65
Less: Reclassified to profit and loss on account of sale subsidiaries (2,636.85) -
At the end of the year 1,04,491.02 1,00,548.64 .
Other comprehensive income .
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Plans 219.02 100.99
Add: Addition during the year (910.66) 118.03
At the end of the year (691.64) 215.02
Fair valuation of mvestments in equity shares v (390.48) (22.85)
Add: Addition during the year (1,840.49) - (367.62)
At the end of the year (2,230.96) (390.48)
‘Foreign currency translation reserve (2,567.59) (4,390..13)

* Add: Reclassified to profit and loss on account of sale subsudlarles .2,636.85 1,046.65
‘Less: Addition during the year -~ (18.79) 775.88.
At the end of the year 50.45 {(2,567.59)
Other comprehensive income at the end of the year (2,872.14) (2,739.05)

1,35,204.05 - 1,31,394.76




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) :

Particulars : As at As at
' 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:
a) Capital reserve: Capital Reserves are mainly the reserves created during business combination for the gain on bargain
purchase.

b) Securities Premium Reserve: Securities premium reserve is credited when shares are issued at premium. It is utilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premlum on redemptlon of shares or
debentures, write- off equity related expenses like underwrltlng costs, etc.

¢) Capital redemption reserves is created on accounts. of buy back of equity shares under the requirement of Compames
Act 2013. '

.d) General reserve: The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from ‘retained earnings for
appropriation purposes. -

Note 18
Non-current borrowings.
Secured (Refer note 18.1)

Term loans from banks ' | v . - : ‘ 1,815.57
Vehicle loans ' . _ - _ 25.67
Loan against Securities (refer note 18.1 sub note 4) ' - - 2,094.17
‘Loan against Insurance Po!icy (refer note 18.1 sub note 5) ' _ 670.28 670.28
Unsecured ' : ‘ ' ) B

Sales "tax deferral loan (Under 1993 package Scheme notified by - 33181 _ 331.81

Government of Maharashtra)

1,002.09 ' 4,937.49

_Inf_ormation‘ about the Group exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in Note 39 -




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 18.1 Secured Non-current borrowings

The Group has met its debt obligation in time/ extended time during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020.
_Sub-note 3 : Vehicle loans .
Vehicle loan from banks and non banking financial companies is secured by way of hypothecation of the vehicles financed by them under the finance'scheme.

Vehicle loans are repayable in equal monthly instalments over the terms of loans ranging from 3 to 4 years.

Sub-note 4 : Loan Against Securities

Particulars Security Repayment terms ' Asat Asat )
: 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sub-note 1 : Term loan from banks |
State Bank.of India (Formerly known Secured by way of first pari passu charge on The loans was repayable in 22 Quarterly - - 443.83
as State Bank of Travancore) (MCLR + PPE of the Company, second pari passu instalments of Rs. 227.27 lakhs each
2.95%) : charge on the current assets of the starting fromJune 2014
' Company, personal guarantee of the .
Promotors of the Group and pledge of
43,93,91,295 equity shares of the borrower
held by the Promoters of the group.
Andhra Bank (Base Rate + 2.50%) Same as above The loans was repayable in 22 Quarterly - 406.92
: ’ instalments of Rs. 227.27 lakhs each :
starting fromJune 2014 - )
South Indian Bank Limited (MCLR+  Same as above - : The loans was repayable in 22 Quarterly - 687.22
2.95%) : instalments of Rs. 377.27 lakhs each
. starting from June 2014
Corporation Bank (Base Rate + 2.60%) Same as above The loans was repayable in 22 Quarterly - 652.70
) instalments of Rs. 377.27 lakhs each
) starting from June 2014 .
Corporation Bank (Base Rate + 2.60%) Same as above : The loans was repayable in 22 Quarterly - 694.79
instalments of Rs. 381.81 lakhs each :
starting from June 2014 .
Andhra Bank (Base Rate + 2.75%) Same as above The loans was repayable in 18 Quarterly - 2,383.60
instalments of Rs. 300.00 lakhs each
starting from June 2015 to March 2017 and
, . Rs. 600.00 from April 17 to Dec-2019
Indusind Bank { 1YRMCLR + 3.10%) Same as above The loans was repayable in 57 Monthly - 2,805.05
i instalments . of Rs. 105.26 lakhs ea¢h
starting from June 2016
Less: Current maturities of long term debt - (6,258.54)
Total term loan from banks - 1,815.57
Sub-note 2 : Corporate loan from banks
Andhra Bank (Base Rate + 3.00%) First on PPE and second on current assets of The Loan Repayable in 54 Equal Installment - 276.32
the Company on pari passu basis with other after 12 months moratorium Period i.e. Jan
fenders and personal guarantee of the 15 of Rs. 92.59 lakhs each
Promoters of the Group.
Indian Overseas Bank { 1YRMCLR + First paripassu charge on PPE of . the The Loan Repayable in 54 Equal Instaliment - 730.41
4.1%) Company & personal ‘guarantee  of after 12 months moratorium Period from
Promoters of the Group. first disbursement (disbursement made on
31.01.14 and 12 months from date i.e.Jan
15
Canara Bank (Base Rate +2.80%) First pari passu on PPE and second pari The loan was repayable in 60 monthly - 1,768.16
passu of current assets and personal instalments of starting from Oct 2014 {First )
guarantee of Promoters of the Group. 20 Month Rs 150.00 each and next 40
Month Rs. 300.00 each).
Less: Current maturities of long term debt - ’ : - (2,774.89)
Total term loan from banks - 0.00

Loan against securities has been taken from Non-Banking Finaricial Company carry interest @ 10.00% p.a. This loan was repayable at the end of 24 months from the

‘date of disbursement of loan. Loan against security is secured by pledge of shares of JSW Energy Limited. The same has been paid off during the year.

. Sub-note 5 : Loan Against Insurance Policy ,
Loan against Policy maturing on 05.03.2023 has been taken from LIC of India carry interest @ 9.50% p.a. .
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.Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Maich 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars : As at ' As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Note 19
Non-current provisions
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 37)

~ Gratuity . ' - 3,012.22 1,738.58

Compensated absences : ' ~ 1,475.00 664.33 -
4,487.22 2,402.91

Note 20
Lurrent borrowings
Secured ,
Rupee packing credit from banks - : S - 81,271.34 1,04,505.79
Cash credit from banks 2,441.42 2,150.22
Biils discounted ‘ : 42,367.51  51,056.06
‘ : ' 1,26,080.27 1,57,712.07
Notes:

a Packing credit and cash credit from banks are secured against first pari-passu charge on the current assets of the

" Company, second pari-passu charge on the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company and personal guarantee of
Promoters of Company.

~ b The Company maintains above lines of credit at below rates of interest:
Packing credit loan Interest at the rate of 8.95% p.a. - 10. 20% p.a. {31 March 2019:9.05% p.a. - 10.50% p.a.).
Cash credit can be drawn down to meet short-term flnancmg needs. Interest at the rate of 11.50% p.a. - 13. 55% p.a.
(31 March 2019: 11.80% p.a. - 13.45% p.a.). ' :

¢ Bills discounted are secured by documents of title to goods endorsed in favour of the Banks and hypothecatlon of
receivable on first pari-passu basis. It can be drawn down to meet short-term financing needs. Interest at the rate of '
9.10% p.a. - 10.20% p.a. (31 March 2019: 9.05% p.a. - 10.50% p.a.). ' '

Note 21

Trade payables v

Micro enterprises and small enterprises : 1,387.98 1,207.19
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises : _ 16,837.98 114,127.41
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises - Acceptance : 50,027.50 : 55,612.74

68,253.47 70,947.35

The Group exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables are disclosed in Note 39 |




Vlraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) :

Particulars ‘ As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Note 22
Current - Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt * 32.24 9,288.30
Interest accrued but not due on borrowmgs 31.84 56.59
Capital creditors ** 351.71 164.10°
‘Creditors for expenses 17,600.53 14,898.19 -
18,016.32 - 24,407.18
*Includes current maturity of term/corporate loans from banks and vehicles loans.
** Includes Micro and Small Enterprises Outstanding Rs. 168.74 Lakhs. (Refer note 43)
Note 23
Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 2,583.01 2,685.26
Statutory dues payables '
Tax Deducted at Source 926.14 892.49
Contributions to Provident Funds and others _ 190.53 -155.17
- Other statutory dues (Profession tax, Labour welfa're) - 29.73 13.64
' ‘ ‘ : ' 3,729.40 3,746.56
Note 24
Provisions
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 37) :
Gratuity © 24443 295.68
Compensated absences 230.14 219.57
' 474.57 515.25 -
Note 25
Income tax liabilities (net) _ :
(Liabilities for current tax (net of advance Tax Rs.16,733.41 Lakhs previous 809.53 5,089.94
year Rs. 8,553.35 Lakhs)
809.53 5,089.94




Viraj Profiles Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Note 26
Revenue from operations
A Sales of products and services (refer note 45
Domestic Sale of products : 56,891.11 43,177.09.
Export sales of products 4,76,014.27 . 5,45,569.87
5,32,905.38. . 5,88,746.96
B  Other operating revenue
Income from export benefits 10,060.41 11,173.93
10,060.41 11,173.93
Total 5,42,965.80 5,99,920.89
Note 27
Other income _
Interest on deposits 881.53 1,081.34
Commission earned - 91.41
Interest on loan to Others ) 2,156.80 501.56
MTM gain on forward exchange contracts {net) - 4,099.08
Gain on cancellation of forward exchange contracts (net) 2,858.83 5,482.69
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back (net)‘ : 9,722.75
Profit on sale of property,plant and equipments (Net) 126.68 19.12
Profit on sale of Joint Vendure / Subsidiaries (net) 591.59 2,250.92
Miscellaneous income ' 299.84 763.34"
6,815.27 24,012.21
Note 28
Cost of materials consumed
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 12,962.91 10,140.66
Add: Purchases 3,37,142.71 3,78,706.94
Less: inventory of materials at the end of the year 7,696.83 12,976.31
3,42,408.79 3,75,871.30
"Note 29
‘Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process
Opening stock : . .
Finished goods 49,692.79 80,530.20
Work-in-process 92,052.92 8,597.25
Stock- in- trade 15,877.43 1,10,254.14
Less:
Closing stock: ) .
Finished goods 59,990.24 49,692.79
Work-in-process 64,453.51 15,877.43
Stock- in- trade 17,835.63 92,052.92
' Changes in inventories: ] -
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process (10,297.46) 30,837.42
Work-in-process 27,599.41 (7,280.18)
Stock- in- trade (1,958.20) 18,201.22
15,343.77 41,758.45
Note 30
Employee benefits expenses _
Salaries and wages 24,616.55 21,170.52
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,241.19 1,070.64
Staff welfare expenses 303.56 370.72
. 26,161.30 22,611.88




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) ’

- Other services ) ' -
- Reimbursement of expenses i e '

Particulars : For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Note 31
Finance costs
Interest on term loans 356.20 2,911.16
Interest on Lease Liabilities ' 151.34
Interest on Packing credit / overdraft . 6,212.04 7,777.68
Interest on Vehicle loans ' 17.38 90.00-.

- Interest on Others 3,133.97 3,366.76

Bills discounting charges ) 2,849.28 6,994.34
- ’ ' 12,720.22 21,139.94

Note 32

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation on tangible assets : 11,810.23 14,506.23

Amortisation on Intangible assets ' — _ : 8.96 1216

Amortisation of Right to use assets : . 1,036.79 ] .

' 12,855.99 14,518.39

Note 33

" Other expenses
Consumption of stores, spares and consumables v ‘ 54,104.99 54,215.50
Power and fuel . ' ) : 35,148.87 32,475.51
Labour charges ) : 2,195.93 2,237.62
Material handling charges : 1,835.48 2,131.16
Job work charges . ‘ s 410.79 998.10
Repairs and maintenance: : _

. Repairs and maintenance: building i . 813.96 319.49
Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery 2,184.10. 1,494.58
Repairs and maintenance - Other assets ' _ ’ v 209.29 299.20
Water expenses . ' 348.64 ' 338.04
Rent expense (Refer note 38) 179.67 1,348.74
Rates and taxes . 234.83 159.54
Insurance i : ’ 255.62 300.94
Legal and professional expenses o . : 2,457.83 3,040.48
Printing and stationery ‘ . : 24.78 . 21.56
Travelling and conveyance . . _ 1,306.61 1,649.51
Communication expenses ’ 123.93 ' 184,57
Advertisement and sales promotion o 2,232.70 3,263.69
Freight and carriage outwards _ : 11,063.96 11,292.83
Net loss on account of foreign exchange - ‘ 2,466.96 1,372.22
Payment to auditors (Refer note (i) below) ‘ ' 46.63 89.68
Commission and brokerage : . 1,742.01 2,611.95
Customer claims ‘ ' 518.20 690.85
Export clearance expenses ' 145.15 261.57
Vehicle running and maintenance expenses ‘ » 227.52 292.54..

- Bad-debts for trade receivables and advances written off (net) ) - 872.05 1,156.11
Provision for doubtful trade receivables and advances (net) . 888.71 59.73
MTM loss on forward exchange contracts (net) : ) ' 1,743.95 -
Bank charges © 3,354.92 4,523.32
Corporate social responsibility expenses {Refer note (ii} below) 254.79 131.23 -
Miscellaneous expenses _ 874.25 - 1,685.13

' - ' 1,28,267.11 1,28,645.38
Note - {i) : Payment to Auditor's {excluding service tax / GST) _ :
- Statutory audit fees ’ ,_ 46.63 89.68

89.68




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Note - {ii) : Corporate $ocial responsibility

Pursuant to the application of Section 135 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, the Company has constituted the CSR
committee in eariler years. The funds are utilized throughout the year on the activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the
Act. The utilization is done by way of contribution to a Trust i.e. Viraj Charitable Trust. The disclosure as required by the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of

India are as follows:

- Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year - Rs. 99.91 lakhs

- Amount Spent durin_g the year through Viraj Charitable Trust - Rs. 254.79 lakhs

" Construction/acquisition of any asset
On purposes other than above - providing education
Total S

Note 34

Statement of other comprehensive income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
Equity instruments through other comprehensive Income

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

(i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences in translating the financial
statements of a foreign operation

(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss )

254.79 131.23
254.79 131.23
(1,125.15) 124.36
(2,123.67) (367.62)
(3,248.82) " (243.26)
497.67 (6.33)
(2,751.15) (249.59)
(18.79) 775.88
(18.79) 775.88

" (18.79) 775.88




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 35

Earnings per equity share ‘ .

Basic earning per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. ' '
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for
interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. :

o 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

i. Profit attributable to Equity holders :
Profit attributable to equity holders : :
- Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings 6,579.23 10,643.01

Profit attributable to equity holders-adiuste_d for the effect éf dilution 6,579.2 3 10, 6_4 3.01
ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares o . ‘
Issued ordinary shares at April 1 o » 1,41,75,48,612  1,22,50,60,898
~ Effect of shares to be issued for Compulsory Convertible Debentures : - 19,24,87,715
Weighted average number of shares at March 31 for EPS : 1,41,75,48,612 1,41,75,48,613

‘Basic and diluted earnings per share :
Basic earnings per share : ' 046 0.75
Diluted earnings per share ' 0.46 0.75 -




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 36 : Tax expense )
(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

For the year ended

. ‘ 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Current income tax : 3,899.65 4,950.89
Changes in tax estimates of prior years ' - (758.62)
Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net ) :

Origination and reversal of temporary differences ' ) ' 1,537.70 864.35
Deferred tax expense ' : 1,537.70 864.35
Tax expense for the year '5,437.35 5,056.62

" (b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income : .
' For the year ended 31 March 2020 - For the year ended 31 March 2019
Beforetax Tax(expense) Netoftax Before tax . Tax(expense) .  Net of tax
benefit ) : benefit

Items that will not be reclassified to profit '

or loss , : . :
Remeasurements of the defined benefit (1,125.15) 283.18 (841.97) 124.36 . -(43.46) 80.90
plans ' : : »
Equity Instruments through - - other (2,123.67) 214.49 (1,909.18) (367.62) 37.13 (330.49) .
comprehensive income

(3,248.82) 497.67  (2,751.16) (243.26) - (6.33) (249.59)
{c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate S
For the year ended
. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit before tax - : - 12,016.13 15,699.27
Statutory income tax rate - . ~25.168% 34.944%
‘Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate : ‘ 3,024.22 5,485.96
- Tax effect of: v , _ ' :

Non-deductible tax expenses o ' . v . 3973 -284.08
Differences in tax rate of subsidiary . ) S (1,870.32)
Deferred tax not recognised for losses of subsidiary ) : . ' 78.60 '644.07
Others _ : 2,294.78 512.83

5,437.34 5,056.62




Viraj Profiles Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Currer_;cy: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

(d) Movement in deferred tax balances

Net balance Recognised Recognised 31 March 2020
1 April, 2019  in profit or in OCl Net Deferred tax
loss asset/(Deferred
tax liability)
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equupment 2,370.05 (836.95) 1,533.10 1,533.10
Derivatives 645.08 {613.97) 31.10 31.10
Security deposits 10.63 6.35 16.98 o 16.98
Compensated absences, gratuity and equity Valuation 1,019.72 (268.60) 497.67 1,248.78 1,248.78
Bonus 60.72 (17.03) ' " 43.69 43.69
Trade receivables 37.85 4,71 42.56 42.56
Other Current Assets 40.19 187.80 227.99 227.99
Borrowings {24.19) - (24.19) (24.19)
Other current liabilities - - - -
Deferred Tax assets on Tax losses Carried forward - - - -
Tax assets (Liabilities) 4,160.05 {1,537.70) 497.67 '3,120.01 3,120.01‘
{e) Movement in deferred tax balances
. Net balance Recognised Recognised 31 March 2019
1 April 2018 - in profit or in OCl Net Deferred tax
loss ' asset/(Deferred
tax liability)
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) _ : C
Property, plant and equipment 1,387.01 982.84 0.20 2,370.05 2,370.05
Derivatives 77231 (127.23) 645.08 645.08
Inventories 617.98 (617.98) - o -
Security deposits 42.50 (31.87) - 10.63 10.63
Other non current assets 496.02 (496.02) - -
Compensated absences and gratuity 1,066.22 (40.17) (6.33) 1,019.72 1,019.72
Bonus | 62.19 (1.47) 60.72 60.72
Trade receivables - 519 32.66 37.85 37.85
Other Current Assets 61.95 (21.76) 40.19 40.19
Borrowings (24.19) (0.00) (24.19) (24.19)
Other current liabilities (43.32) 43.32 - -
Deferred Tax assets on Tax losses Carried forward 586.67 @ (586.67) ) - : -
Tax assets (Liabilities) 5,030.53 (864.35) (6.13) 4,160.05 4,160.05

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorlty ‘

Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and
recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income by each
jurisdiction in which the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.

Deferred Tax Liability (DTL) in respect of temporary differences related to undistributed earnings in subSIdlanes has not been recognlsed
because the Group controls the dividend policy of its subsidiaries : :

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised
In respect of capital loss :
Expiry date 31/3/2023

31 March 2019
41,239.74

31 March 2020
34,508.90
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Note 37 : Employee benefit expense .
The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.
(i) Defined Contribution Plans: '

- The Group makes contributions towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying -
employees. Under the plan; the Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement

benefit plan to fund the benefits. _

The contributions payable to these plans by the Group are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. :
The Company recognised Rs. 1241.19 (previous year Rs. 1185.11) for provident and other fund contributions in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. ' ’

(i} Defined Benefit Plan:

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were
carried out as at 31 March 2020. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and
past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method. :

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following tablie sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the
amounts recognised in the Group financial statements as at balance sheet date:

) - 31 March 2020 31 March 2019.
Net defined benefit asset ’ : - : ' -
Total employee benefit asset. ‘ : - - -
Net defined benefit liability |
Liability for Gratuity : _ ' "~ 3,256.66 2,034.26
Total employee benefit liabilities . o : S 3,256.66 : 2,034.26
Non-current : 3,012.22 v _ 1,738.58

Current ' 244.43 295.68

B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset)
liability and.its components: ' :

Defined benefit obligation

31 March 31 March

12020 2019
.Opening balance . , 2,034.26 2,044.59
Included in profit or loss : . _ : - -
Current service cost . ' : 194.35 181.23
Past service cost o » - -
Interest cost (income) ' » 154.40 157.64

2,383.01 2,383.45

Included in OCI

Remeasurement loss (gain): ’

Actuarial loss (gain) arising from: : : _ ' - -
Demographic assumptions . ‘ ) - -
Financial assumptions ' : ' 389.78 19.56

Experience adjustment ' _ ' 735.37 {143.92)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income o : ' - -

: ’ ' 1,125.15 (124.36)
Other : _
Benefits paid "~ (251.50) (224.83)
_Closing balance , . 3,256.66 © 2,034.26

Represented by:
Net defined benefit asset
Net defined benefit liability

3,256.66 2,034.26

3,256.66 2,034.26




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 37 : Employee benefit expense :
Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation from the reporting year:

2nd '
3rd Following 4th Following Sth Sum of Years

1st Following Following Following
Year ' Year Year 6To 10
Year Year
31 March 2020 . 24443 . 200.75 213.05 233.79 .202.01 1,217.65
31 March 2019 295.68 142.36 130.99 130.06 ' 173.14 760.62
C. Plan assets ' ‘
The Group does not have any plan assets.
D. Defined benefit obligations
i. Actuarial assumptions »
The following were the principal actuarlal assumptlons at the reportmg date (expressed as weighted averages).
31 March 2020 - 31 March 2019
Discount rate ‘ 6.04% 7.59%
Salary escalation rate - 6.00% . 6.00%
Employee turnover rate : For service 1 years and For service 1 years and
' below 35.00% p.a. ~ below 35.00% p.a.
For service 2 years to 4 years For service 2 years to 4 years
© 20.00% p.a. 20.00% p.a.
For service 5 years and For service 5 years and
above 5.00% p.a. . above 5.00% p.a.
Mortaiity rate , Indian Assured Lives _ Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08) Mortality (2006-08)

ii. Sensitivity analysis » .
‘Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
) : Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Rate of discounting (1% movement) (260.81) 300.23 (152.78)  177.87
‘Rate of salary increase (1% movement) : 297.34 (263.21) 178.93 {156.27)
Rate of employee turnover (1% movement) - . (3.49) 3.47 19.92 (22.97)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown. ' :
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Note 38 : Leases o :
Transition to Ind AS 116 Effective 1st April, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the
On transition, the adoption of the-new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use’ asset of Rs 2227.40 Lakhs,

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
(i} Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a

similar end date:

(i}  Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of
lease term on the date of initial application. . '

(iii) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial

) application. .
(iv) Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly,

Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17. The weighted

The changes in the carrying value of right of use (ROU) assets for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Right of Use Assets . : :
Description ' - Building
Gross Block as on 1 April 2019 -
Addition 2,227.40
Deletion . -
Gross Block as on 31 March 2020 2,227.40
Accumulated amortisation as on 1 April 2019 -
Addition S 1,036.79
Deletion : ' -
Accumulated amortisation as on 31 March 2020 1,036.79
Net Block as on 31 March 2020 1,190.62

Lease Liability

Description ' : Building |
Lease liability as on 1 April 2019 - :
Addition 2,227.40
Interest Cost accrued during the year 151.34
Lease liability payment (1,136.00)
Deletion . -

Lease liability as on 31 March 2020 1,242.75
Current lease liability 1,203.37
Non - Current lease liability 39.38
Total lease liability _ 1,242.75

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard vto its lease liabilities as the current assets are
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due. Rental expense recorded for
short-term leases or cancellable in nature was Rs. 177.83 Lakhs lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of 31st March, 2020 on an
undiscounted basis:

Particulars . Building
Not later than one year . ’ 1272]
Later than one year and not later than five yeérs - 40
Later than five years ‘ -
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Note 39 : Fair value disclosures
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value

- hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount
is a reasonable approximation of fair value. )

Carrying amount : _ Fair value

31 March 2020 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total “ Level 1 " Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cost

Financial assets :
Cash and cash equivalents and - - 12,216.53 12,216.53 . - - 12,216.53 12,216,53
Bank balances other than cash '
and cash equivalents . ) ) : :

_Investments . - 3,033.38 0.10 3,033.48 3,033.12 - 0.35 ©3,033.48

Others non-current assets - - " 230.00 230.00 - - 230.00 - 230.00
Current loans - - 311.29 . 311.29 - - 311.29 . 311.29 |
Trade receivables ) - - 32,180.73 32,180.73 - - 32,180.73  32,180.73 |
Other financial assets ~ 123,55 Co- 3,235.07 3,358.62 123.55 - 3,235.07 » 3,358.62 |
123.55 3,033.38 . 48,173.72  51,330.64 3,156.67 - 48,173.97 51,330.64 ’ |
Financial liabilities : . ‘ :
Non-current borrowings » - - 1,002.09 . 1,002.09 - —_— 1,002.09 - 1,002.09
Current borkowings - - 1,26,080.27 1,26,080.27 - - 1,26,080.27 1,26,080.27
- Lease Liabilities ‘ 1,242.75 1,242.75 - . - 1,242.75 1,242.75
Trade payables : - - ' 68,253.47 68,253.47 : - i - - 68,253.47 68,253.47
Other financial liabilities - - - 18,016.32 18,016.32 - s 18,016.32 18,016.32
- - 2,14,594.90 2,14,594.90 - - 2,14,594.90 2,14,594.90
31 March 2019 . Carrying amount Fair value )
) FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total Level 1 . Level 2 Level 3 Total
' Cost '
Financial assets : .
Cash and cash equivalents and - - 18,094.10  18,094.10 - - 18,094.10  18,094.10 -
Bank balances other than cash '
and cash equivalents ) .
Investments : ’ - 5,164.81 0.10 5,164.91 5,164.54 0.27 - 0.10  5,164.91
Others non-current assets ) - Co- 315.28 315.28 ) - - 315.28 ' 315.28
Current loans - ) -. . 2,374.86 2,374.86 - - 2,374.86 2,374.86
Trade receivables - - 35,640.74 35,640.74 - - 35,640‘74 35,640.74
Other financial assets 1,867.50 - 1,020.20 2,887.70 1,867.50 - 1,020.20 2,887.70
1,867.50 5,164.81 57,445.27 64,477.57 7,032.04 0.27 57,445.27 64,477.57
“ Financial liabilities .
Non-current borrowings - - 4,937.50 4,937.50 ) - ' - . 4,937.50 4,937.50
Current borrowings - - 1,57,712.07 1,57,712.07 - . - 1,57,712.07 1,57,712.07
Lease Liabilities ’ - - - - - - - -
Trade payables . - - 70,947.35 70,947.35 - - 70,947.35 70,947.35
Other financial liabilities - - 24,407.18 24,407.18 - - 24,407.18 24,407.18
- - 2,58,004.10 2,58,004.10. - - - 2,58,004.10 2,58,004.10

B. Measurement of fair values (Key inputs for valuation techniques) :

. 1. Listed Equity Investments (other than Subsidiaries and Joint Venture) : Quoted Bid Price on Stock Exchange (Level 1)
2. Forward contracts : Forward exchange rate is taken from Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of india (FEDAI) (Level 2)
3. Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs: Not applicable (Level 3)

Transfers between Levels 1 and 2 : ]
There were no transfer from Level 1 to Level 2 or vice versa in any of the reporting periods.
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Note 39 : Fair value disclosures
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

C. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk ; '

= Liquidity risk ; and

= Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Group board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group risk management framework. The board

of directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group risk management policies. - -
The Group risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market

-.conditions and the Group activities. The Group, through its training and Mmanagement standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined

and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

are reported to the audit committee.

ii. Credit risk _
_Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure;
Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables as on 31 March 2020 is Rs. 32180.73 (31 March 2019 : Rs.35640.74). The Company has disclosed concentration of customer -

under segment i'eporting in Conslodated Financial Statement. .

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the‘default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate. o ' :

“The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s

standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, and in
some cases bank references. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed half yearly. o

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables in accordance of the requirement of Ind
AS'109. , - . ‘ ‘
At at reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by geographic region was as follows:

Carrying amount (in Rs.)

‘31 March 31 March

: 2020 2019
~India ‘ . ' _ 10,281.70  5,406.57
Other regions* i i . : : - 21,899.03 30,234.17"

32,180.73 35,640.74

* The Company exports its products in various countries mainly in Europe

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past dues are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour'and

extensive analysis of customer credit risk conducted by management,
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Note 39 : Fair value disclosures
Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

31 March 31 March

_ _ 2020 2019 -
Opening balance _ ' 108.30 15.00
" Provision for receivables impairment ) ) : 60.80 93.30 .
Receivabies written off during the year as uncollectible ' o - -
Provision released during the year ' C- -
Closing balance : ' ' 169.10 108.30

Cash and cash equivalents : :
The Company maintains its Cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high
quality credit rating and also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-going basls. '

Derivatives : . .

. The derivatives deals are done with AD category banks in OTC market and registered brokers in ETCD market.
jii. Liquidity risk ) .
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity. is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they ére due, under both.normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. : ) )
The Company uses product-based costing to cost its products and servicés, which assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing
its cash return on investments. The Company monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expectad
cash outflows on trade and other payables. ’ ' ‘

' 'Exposure to liquidity risk

. The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts arergfoss and undiscounted, and -

include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

31 March 2020 ’ Carrying Contractual cash flows
S ’ 12 months  1-2 years 2-5years More than 5
amount . .
or less ‘years

Non-derivative financial liabilities _ : ' . '

Non-current borrowings 1,002.09 ’ 331.81 " 670.28 .-

Current borrowings S : 1,26,080.27 1,26,080.27 - - -
~Lease Liabilities e 1,242.75 1,203.37 39.38 - -

Trade payables 68,253.47  68,253.47 - - ’ -

Other financial liabilities . : 18,016.32  18,016.32 - ’ - -

Financial guarantees . . o - o- : - - v -
Derivative financial liabilities _
Forward exchange contracts : - - - - -

31 March 2019 Carrying Contraptual cash flows
: ’ : 12 months  1-2 years 2-5years Morethan5
amount

g or less years
Non-derivative financial liabilities ‘ ‘ '

- Non-current borrowings ' ) 4,937.49 - 4,605.68 331.81 -
Current borrowings : 1,57,712.07 1,57,712.07 . oo - -
Trade payables , 70,947.35 = 70,947.35 - - -
Other financial liabilities ] ) 24,407.18 24,407.18 - - -

Financial guarantees S . . - - - - : -
Derivative financial liabilities o o
Forward exchange contracts v - - - - .

_The gross inflows/{outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to derivative financial -

liabilities held for risk management purposes and which are not usually closed out before contractual maturity. The disclosure shows.net cash
flow amounts for derivatives that are net cash-settled and gross cash inflow and outflow amounts for derivatives that have simultaneous gross
cash settlement. ’ o
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued) .

iv. Market risk . .

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates — will affect the group
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial
instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. We are exposed to market risk primarily
related to foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. Thus, our exposure to market risk is a function of revenue
generating and operating activities in foreign currency. The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive
exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs, ' ‘

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings, other payables and receivables in foreign currency. The
functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk,
. most with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date. -

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. .

Following are the forward contracts to hedge the foreign exchange rate risk as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019:

Particulars Purpose Currency Cross Currency |31 March, 2020{31 March, 2019
Forward contracts ’ Exports - USD Rs. 446.57 55.37
» Exports Euro . usD 780.59 | ~ '1,292.93
Exports GBP "UsD | 8.40 3.75

Exports AUD uUsD 32.78 22.40

Exposure to currency risk . v
The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities in Rs. as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are as below:

31 March 2020 : : . UsD EURO JPY - Others

Financial assets ' ,
Others-non-current assets "~ 1,460.64 54.15 . -
Current loans ' ' : - - - 85.16
Trade receivables _ . 9,707.02 11,088.14 - 1,031.07
Other financial assets ' - - - » -
" Other current assets . ‘ 745.06 177.58 - 4.67 176.67
' ' 11,912.72 11,319.87 4.67 . 1,292.90

Financial liabilities
Non-current borrowings ) ‘ - - - .

Current borrowings ' 19,553.83 21,936.74 - 876.90
Trade payables 43,680.62 - 100.43 - 5184 . - -
Other financial liabilities 1,652.85 . 3,775.81 |- 72,22
S 64,887.30 = 25,812.98 51.84 949.12
31 March 2019 usD EURO JPY " Others
.Financial assets . '
Others non-current assets _ - 129.85 .- :
Trade receivables ' . ) 17,831.38 © 10,720.26 - - 4,103.68
Other financial assets o - - oo -
Other current assets : 4,573.43 ' 169.87 4.97 19.31
’ 22,404,81 11,019.98 4.97 4,122.99

" Financial liabilities » . '
‘Current borrowings ‘ : ) 17,485.17 30,580.54 -0 2,854.64

Trade payables . ¢ 41,861.30¢ 508.86 1.20 .
Other financial liabilities : ©3,090.77 3,285.49 ' - 48.31

62,437.24 34,374.89 1.20 2,902.95
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Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management {continued)
The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year.
Rs. ' Averagerate = . -Year-end spot rate
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2020 31 Mérch, 2019

usD 70.88 69.95 75.67 69.15

EUR - 78.80 80.93 82.77 . 77.55

JPY : 0.65 0.63 0.70 . 0.62

Sensitivity analysis _ . .
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against foreign currency at March 31 would have
affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign éurrency and affected profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact
of forecast sales and purchases.

Effect in Rs. __Profit or (loss) before tax
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 .
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31 March 2020
1% movement

usD o 529.75 (529.75) 400.32 {400.32)
EUR : ©144.93 (144.93) 233.55 (233.55)
Jpy ’ 0.47 " (0.47) .. (0.04) . 0.04

Others (3.44) 3.44 (12.20) 12.20
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Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of
changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing finacial instruments because of fluctuations in‘the interest rates. Cash flow interest

rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing financial instruments- will fluctuate because of
fluctuations in the interest rates. ’ ’ ' -

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group interest rate risk arises from borrowings and fixed income financial instruments. Borrowings issued at fixed rates

'exposes to fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate profile of the Group interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to
the management of the Group is as.follows.

, 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fixed-rate instruments ' : :
Financial assets - o 14,122.77 - ©17,094.08
Financial liabilities _ - S -

14,122.77. » 17,094.08

Variable-rate instruments ‘

Financial assets ’ ' : - -
Financial liabilities - : o 1,27,114.61 - 1,71,937.85
_ ' , (1,27,114.61) - (1,71,937.85)
Total ' . ' , (1,12,991.84) (1,54,843.78)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments : . v
The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the

Company does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore, a change-

in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit
or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates,
remain constant. ‘ S

Profit or {loss) before tax

Rs. 100 bp increase’ 100 bp decrease
31 March 2020 : '
Variable-rate inStruments (1,271.15) 1,271.15
~ Cash flow sensitivity (net) - (1,271.15) 1,271.15
31 March 2019 '
Variable-rate instruments (1,719.38) - 1,719.38

Cash flow sensitivity (net) - (1,719.38) 1,719.38
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Note 40 : Capital Management

The Group policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. '

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net
debt is defined as total borrowings, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and-cash
equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity. '

_ The Corﬁpany’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 was as follows.
f As at 31 March As at 31 March

: . , 2020 8 2019

Total borrowings : 1,27,114.61 ~1,71,937.85
Less : Cash and cash equivalent including bank } ' 12,216.53 18,094.10
balances other than cash and cash equivalents _ ' o '
Adjusted net debt : ' 1,14,898.08 1,53,843.76
Total equity S ) v ' 1,49,391.29 1,45,582.43
Less : Hedging reserve ' v - ’ -
Adjusted equity , 1,49,391.29 1,45,582.43
-Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio » 077 ‘ 1.06

In addition the Group has financial covenants relating to the borrowing facilities that it has taken from the lenders
like interest coverage service ratio, Debt to EBITDA, etc. which is maintained by the Company.

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities (excluding non-fund based facilities) aggregating to Rs.30,894.43 lakhs
(previous year: Rs. 9,568.45). ' ' :

Foedha g i
i
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. Note 41 .
A. Related party relationships, transactions and balances

Nature of relationship

I Holding Company
‘Bhoomika Financial Services Private Limited

Il Joint ventures - v
a M/s Devbhoomi (upto 25 September 2019)

Il Enterprises over which Directors and their relatives exercise significant influence
a Vaishno Megamovers LLP.

Viraj Infrastructure Limited -

Vaishno Logistic Pvt. Ltd

Viraj Charitable Trust ,

Nitya Processor LLP (Erstwhile Viraj Wrapping LLP)

Shivdooti Pearls And Investment Limited

- O QO o T

IV Key Management Personnel and their relatives

a Mr. Neeraj Raja Kochhar (Chairman and Managing Director)
‘Mrs. Renu Kochhar (Managing Director) (upto 29 July, 2019
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Ajmeria (Whole time Director) (Upto 1st October, 2019 )
Mr: Gyan Chand Daga (Independent Director) o ’ '
Mr. Amar, Lal Daultani (Independent Director)
Mrs. Pooja Mehra (Whole time Director)

- 0 Q o T

oq

Mr. Dhruv Kochhar (Relative of Director) .
i Mr. Pawankumar Gopinath Bajaj (Additional Director) (w.e.f. 21st January, 2020) -

Mrs. Dipali Chirag Shah (Additional Director) (w.e.f. 23rd December, 2019) (Uptq 28th March, 2020)
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41 Related Party Disclosures: (Continued)

B. The following transactions were carried out during the year with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Enterprises over which Directors
and their relatives exercise
. significant influence

Nature of Transactions

Key Management Personnel
and their relatives

Total

31 March 2020 31 March 201931 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Sales

Nitya Processor LLP (Erstwhiie Viraj 163.96 83.04 - - 163.96 83.04

Wrapping LLP)

Vaishno Megamovers LLP 18.33 - - - 18.33 -

Total 163.96 83.04 - - -~ 163.96 83.04

Purchase of raw materials, intermediaries and others (includfng any other services)

Vaishno MegamoversiLP 17,445.72 18,992.45 - - 17,445.72 18,992.45

Nitya Processor LLP {Erstwhile Viraj 8,221.23 2,169.81 - - 8,221.23 2,169.81

Wrapping LLP) ' :

Total 25,666.95 21,162.26 - - - ~ 25,666.95 21,162.26

Sale of PPE / Right .

Vaishno Megamovers LLP 62.85 - - - 62.85 -

Mr. Neeraj R. Kochhar {Adv for 2,999.77 - 2,999.77 -

Property tfd.)

Total 62.85 - - - 62.85 -

Sale of Investment in Joint Venture (M/s Dev Bhoomi) )

Mr. Neeraj R. Kochhar - - 4,913.10 - 4,913.10 -

Total - - 4,913.10 - 4,913.10 -

Director sitting fees

Mr. Gyanchand Daga - - 5.50 3.50 5.50 3.50
. Mr. Amar Lal Daultani . 5.00 - 5.00 -

Total - - 10.50 3.50 10.50 3.50

Interest Income

Vaishno Megamovers LLP 556.25 - - - 556.25 -

Total 556.25 - - - 556.25 -

Rent paid )

Mr. Neeraj R. Kochhar - - 180.00 180.00 180.00 ~180.00

Mrs. Renu Kochhar - - 900.00 900.00 - 900.00 900.00

Mrs. Dhruv Kochhar 21.30 4491 21.30 44.91

Mrs. Dhruv Kochhar 56.00 - 56.00 -

Total - - 1,157.30 1,124.91 1,157.30 1,124.91

Short term employee benefits

Mr. Neeraj R. Kochhar - - 2,680.25 545.32 2,680.25 545.32

Mrs. Renu Kochhar - - 360.00 545.32 360.00 545.32

Mrs. Pooja Mehra - - 300_.25 174.30 300.25 174.30

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Ajmeria - - 20.68 56.99 20.68 56.99

Mr. Pawankumar Gopinath Bajaj - - 18.21 - 18.21 . -

Total - - 3,379.39 1,321.93 -3,379.39 1,321.93

Post employment benefits on Retirement

Mrs. Renu Kochhar - - 859.11 - 859.11 -

Total - - 859.11 - 859.11 -

Deposit given , '

Shivdooti Pearls And Investment Ltd - - 16.00 -

Total - - 16.00 -

CSR expenditure //2) adh, Q‘;&K . »

Viraj Charitable Tr}}/s{\ Q}f h Q(:i‘\ 254,79 131.23 254,79 131.23

Total i % f IMIA )] 254.79 131.23 254.79 131.23

! 7l -




Viraj Profiles Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) )

‘41 Related Party Disclosures: {Continued)
C. The following are outstanding at the year end with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Enterprises over which Directors
and their relatives exercise
significant influence
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Key Management Personnel and - Total

Nature of Transactions their relatives

) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Deposit as on : :
Mr. Dhruv Kochhar - - 85.16 85.16 . 85.16 85.16
Shivdooti Pearls And Investment Ltd ] 16.00 - 16.00 -
Total - - 101.16 85.16 101.16 85.16
Receivables / Advances
Vaishno Megamovers LLP 20,081.83 14,556.05 - - 20,081.83 14,556.05
Viraj Infrastructure Limited - 6.49 - - S 6.49
Vaishno Logistic Pvt. Ltd ] 78.80 78.80 - - 78.80 78.80
Nitya Processor LLP (Erstwhile Viraj 3,0_55.'69 - - - 3,055.69 -
Wrapping LLP) . ‘ )
Total 23,216.34 14,641.34 - - 23,216.34 14,641.34
’ Rs. In lakhs
Interest receivable as on - '
Vaishno Megamovers LLP 556.25 - - - 556.25 -
Total 556.25 | - - - 556.25 -
Payables
Nitya Processor LLP (Erstwhile Vir: - 2,169.44 - - - 2,169.44
Wrapping LLP) : .
Renu Kochhar 19.78 266.47 19.78 266.47
Neeraj Kochhar . 0.77 - 0.77 -
" Total - 2,169.44 20.55 266.47 ~.20.55 2,435.91

Directors of the Companies have givén personal guarantees towards certain borrowings and cash credit facilities availed by the group from banks.

Gratuity and Compensated absences are not included in managerial remuneration as disclosed above.
¢.  All transactions with the related parties are priced on an arm's |
balances are secured.’ )

ength prices and resulting outstanding balances are to be settled in cash. None of the
d. Transactions with the related parties are disclosed only till the relationships exists.




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 42 - Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

a. Contingent liabilities ‘ .
Letter of credit pending receipt of material 10,614.19 23,269.26

Demands raised by Income tax authorities 26,076.20 2,574.76
Demands raised by Service tax authorities _ 3.70 5173
Demands raised by Excise authorities : 21.18 5,950.04
Demands raised by Custom authorities S 1,321.14 1,854.48
Demand raised by VAT Authorities and appealed agamst after depositing Rs. 430.83 lakhs. {Previous 5,607.15 4,936.60

Year Rs. 364.41 Lakhs). In additions Interest and penalty demand of Rs. 9,704.96 Lakhs (Previous year

Rs 8202.08 Lakhs). The Company is confident that the demands are not tenable. Hence it has not

availed Amnesty Scheme in which the company had option to pay interest and penalty of Rs. l 774.76

- lakhs (Previous Year Rs 1493.87 Lakhs). ]

Demand raised by Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Co. Ltd on captive consumer due to 2,890.69 2,890.69
alleged non-compliance of CPP status by Sai Wardha Power Generation Ltd. ' ' :

Claims against the company not acknowledged as Debts ' ' 179.86 -

b. “The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s
EPFQ, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the
purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. There are interpretative aspects related to the Judgement including the
effective date of application.

The Company has complied with said order w.e.f. October 1, 2019 and also provided a sum of Rs. 96.36 lakhs towards Company's share of
provident fund till Sept 30,2019. The Company will continue to assess any further developments in this matter for the implications on
financial statements, if any. Further, pending decision on the subject review petition and directions from the EPFO, the impact for the past
period, if any, was not ascertainable and consequéntly no effect was given in the accounts.

b. Commitments ] .
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided- 4,979.54 2,863.81

for

(i) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicablé for the Group to estimate the timing of the cash outflows, if any,
inrespect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgement/decisions pending with various forums/authorities. '

{ii) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required
and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. Based on the opinion received, the company does not.
expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on lts financial position.

Note 43 - Dues to micro and small enterprises *
: 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

The principal amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year 1,556.72 ©1,207.19

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid on above : : 31.93 o 3.00

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises - » -
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 85.86 111.91
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest

specified under MSMED Act, 2006

The -amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day ' 6,282.87 5,561.17
during each accounting year .

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year : ‘ 117.79 114.91
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 620.26 502.47

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance s.a.deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006

* Dues to Mlcro
on the basis of inf¢
auditors.

y the Management and information collectéd,i
4

/ 3/n this reg r@. his has been relied upon by the
i<




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 44 - Sigment Information

" A. General information

(a) Factors used to identify the entity’s reportable segments, including the basis of organisation

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services and. has three reportable segments, as
follows:

* Segment-1, Manufacture, Trading of Stainless Steel (SS) Products

¢ Segment-2, Real Estate '

* Segment-3, Others

Management evaluates the Group performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by operating
segments. Management reviews revenue and gross profit as the performance indicator for all of the operating segments, and does not review the
~total assets and liabilities of an operating segment, ’ k

(b ) Following are reportable segments

Reportable segment

Segment-1: Manufacture, Trading of Stainless Steel Products
Segment-2: Real Estate

Segment-3: Others

Others

B. Information about reportable segments

For the year ended March 31, 2020 o ‘Reportable segments
Particulars ) Manufacture, Real Estate . Others Total Segments
1 ’ . Trading of SS :
_Product
Revenue . 5,42,907.92 . 6,873.14 - ' 5,49,781.06
Total Revenue 5,42,907.92 6,873.14 - 5,49,781.06
Segment profit / (loss) 29,948.93 (23,370.15) - 6,578.77
Segment assets - b 3,02,556.01 64,453.51 - 3,67,009.52
Segment liabilities ) 2,23,286.10 - - 2,23,286.10
For the year ended March 31, 2019 ' Reportable segments
Particulars R Manufacture, Real Estate Others Total Segments
Trading of SS
Product .
Revenue - : 6,23,933.10 - - 6,23,933.10
Total Revenue . 6,23,933.10 - . - © 6,23,933.10
Segment profit / (loss) . ' 10,642.66 . - " 10,642.66
Segment assets © 7 3,11,852.86 96,374.48 - - 4,08,227.34
Segment liabilities ) 2,64,668.81 . - 2,64,668.81

B. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS

.{Particulars ' For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

(a) Revenue . .
Total revenue for reportable segments 5,49,781.06 6,23,933.10
Revenue for other segments - -
Elimination of inter-segment revenue - -
Total revenue : 5,49,781.06 6,23,933.10

{b) Profit / loss before tax .
Total profit before tax for reportable segments 6,578.77 10,642.66
Profit before tax for other segments ) ) : )

[|Elimination of inter-segment profit . - -

Total profit before tax from operations 6,578.77 10,642.66
{c) Assets . . o
Total assets for reportable segments ) 3,67,009.52 4,08,227.34

Assets for other segments ) : - .
Other unallocated amounts . - -

Total assets . 3,67,009.52 4,08,227.34
(d)Liabitities } .
Total liabilities for reportable segments : 2,23,286.10 2,64,668.81

|Liabilities for other segments - - -
Other unallocated amounts . . - |
Total liabilities ] 2,23,286.10 2,64,668.81

C. Information about major customers

Revenues from one customer A of the segment 1 represented approximately 36.53% (previous year - NIL) of the Company's total revenue.



Viraj Profiles Limited )
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note 45 - Dislosure under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is engaged into manufacturing of stainless steel products.There is no impact on the Group revenue on applying ind AS 115 from the contract with
customers. .

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Particulars . 2019-20 2018-19
Steel Others Total Steel Others Total

: i Products Products
1. sale of products (Transferred at point in time) Manufacturing . :
India’ 53,116.48 | 3,356.92 56,472.40 41,155.97 1,546.84 42,702.81
Africa 11,203.80 | 11,203.80 - 13,926.34 13,926.34
America 162.30 162.30 214.82 214.82
Asia (Other Than India) 96,567.67 ' 96,567.67 | 1,14,551.83 1,14,551.83
Europe ’ 3,10,492.45 3,10,492.45 | 3,46,710.23 2,514.42 3,49,224.65 |
North America . 4,299.01 o 4,299.01 8,048.44( 8,048.44
Oceania 1,415.55 - 1,415.55 5,762.47 ,' 5,762.47
South America o 32,056.31 ’ . 32,056.31 33,781.51 33,781.51
Russia CIS ) 20,235.89 20,235.89 20,534.09 20,534.09
Total : 5,29,5648.46 | 3,356.92 5,32,905.38 | 5,84,685.70 4,061.26 5,88,746.96

Sales by performance obligations

Particulars ' . ~2019-20 - 2018-19
) Steel Others Total Steel Others Total
Products ’ Products :
Upon shipment : 2,1-5,625.04 - 2,15,625.04 | 2,45,035.05 2,45,035.05
Upon delivery . -3,13,923.42 | 3,356.92 | 3,17,280.34 | 3,42,165.07 1,546.84 3,43,711.91
Total Revenue 5,29,548.46 | 3,356.92 | 5,32,905.38 | 5,87,200.12 1,546.84 5,88,746.96
Reconciliation of revenue from contract with cus‘tomer
Particulars ‘ 2019-20 2018-19 .
Steel Others Total Steel Others Total
Products Products ’
Revenue from contract with customer as per the contract price 5,34,485.20 | 3,356.92 | 5,37,842.12 5,90,101.99 " 4,061.26 5,94,163.25

Adjustments made to contract price on account of -

a) Discounts / Rebates / Incentives 2,899.22 2,899.22 2,786.06 | ) 2,786.06

b) Sales Returns /Credits / Reversals | 2,037.52 2,037.52 2,630.23 ‘ 2,630.23
Revenue from contract with customer . 5,29,548.46 3;356.92 5,32,905.38 5,84,685.70 . 4,061.26 5,'88,746.96

Contract liabilities ) :

Advance Collections is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. ] ) .
This includes advances received from the customer towards sale of goods. Revenue is recognised once the performance obligation is met i.e. upon transfer of
control of promised goods to customers.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Opening contract liabilities v : ) ' o 2,685.26 12,163.14 -
less: amount recognised in revenue ' ' . © 923.29 10,683.93°
Add: amount received in advance during the year : ' : - 821.04 1,206.05

Closing contract liabilities 2,583.01 2,685.26




Viraj Profiles Limited

Note: 46 Equity accounted investee
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) .
Information of interest of the Group in its equity accounted investee:

Note reference . March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Interest in Joint Ventures See Note (A) below . - 4,321.55
Total - 4,321.55 |

[A] interest in Joint Venture (Refer Note - 48)

(1) List of Joint Venture of the Group

Proportion of Ownership Interest

Country of
| SrNo Name s :
i Incorporation March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1 Investment in partnership firm - M/s Dev Bhoomi India ’ 0.00% 60.00%'

The principal place of business of the entity listed above is the same as their respective country of incorporation.

' The following table comprises the financial information of the Group“s Joint Venture and their respective carrying amount.

|investment in partnership firm - M/s Dev Bhoomi _ » j
Particulars » ' - . Asat . Asat
) . 31/03/2020 | '31/03/2019
Non-current Assets - 0.00
Current Assets : . |
Cash and cash equivalents _ - ‘ 5.36
Other Assets o v . - -+ 11,968.95
Total Current Assets . _ ' - ‘ 11,974.32‘
Current liabilities »
Finanical liabilities : ‘ - - 7,161.45
Other liabilities ' _
Total current liabilities - ‘ - 7,161.45
Net Assets (100%) ‘ ' - 4,812.87
Group’s share of net assets ' _ ) ' - 2,887.72
Consolidation adjustment o - 1,433.83
[Loss set off against loan . o _
Carrying amount of interest in joint venture - . 4,321.55
Investment in‘partnership firm - M/s Dev Bhoomi ’ ‘ ' j
For the year ended For the year ended
31/03/2020 : 31/03/2019
| | | - ]
Finance costs S o ‘ - : 0.05
Profit for the year (100%) : : - ‘ (0.05)|.

Other comprehensive income for the year (100%)

‘ Total Comprehensive income for t'he year ' v _ - (0.05)
Group's share of profit - o - - (0.03)




Viraj Profiles Limited

Note 47
(Currency: indian Rupees in Lakhs) -

Additional information pursuant to paragraph 2 pf Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 -

of Division Il of Schedule Hi

"General instructions for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements"

As at March 31, 2020

Net Assets, i.e Total Assets Share in Profit or loss Share in Other comprehensive Share in Total Comprehensive
minus total liabilities income ' income
. As % of Amount (INR) As % of Amount (INR) As % of Amount {INR) | As%ofTotal | Amount (INR)
Name of the entities in the Group Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Comprehensive
Net Assets Profit or Loss " Other income
Comprehensive |
income
Parent . . .
Viraj Profiles Limited 106%| 1,58,149.73 110% 7,237.60 99.32% (2,751.15) 117.79% 4,486.45
Subsidiaries
Foreign
Viraj USA INC. 0% - 0% (2.57) - -0.07% (2.57)
Sino Investment Global Limited 8% 11,998.67 . 1% (441.27) - -11.59% (441.27)
Non controlling interest 0% 11.76 0% - 0.00% .
Joint Venture
Investment in partnership firm - M/s Dev Bhoomi 0% - 0% - - 0.00% -
Consolidation adjustment -14% (20,768.87)} -3% (214.99) 0.68% (18.79) -6.14% (233.78)
Total 100%]  1,49,391.29 100% '6,578.77 100% (2,769.94) 100% . 3,808.83
As at March 31, 2019
Net Assets, i.e Total Assets Share in Profit or loss Share in Other comprehensive Share in Total Comprehensive
minus total liabilities income income
As % of Amount (INR) As % of Amount (INR) As % of Amount (INR} | As % of Total | Amount (INR)
Name of the entities in the Group Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Comprehensive
Net Assets Profit or Loss Other income
: ‘Comprehensive
income
Parent : : )
Viraj Profiles Limited 106%| 1,53,663.29 74% 7,879.95 |, -47.42% (249.59) 68.32% 7,630.36
Subsidiaries
Foreign ] .
Viraj USA INC. 0% 194.26 - -4% {380.59) 0.00% - -3.41% (380.59)
Sino Investment Global Limited -6% (8,566.24) -53% {5,618.09) 0.00% ’ - -50.30% (5,618.09)
Non controlling interest 0% 12.18 0% 0.00% - 0.00% -
Joint Venture 0.00% -
Investment in partnership firm - M/s Dev Bhoomi 0% - 0% - 0.00% -
Consolidation adjustment 0% 278.94 82% 8,761.39 147.42% 775.88 85.39%) 9,537.27
Total 100%|  1,45,582.43 100% 10,642.66 100% 526.29 '100% 11,168.95




Viraj Profiles Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) '

Note - 48

Transfer of Investment in Joint Venture ' . .

During the year, the group has retired vide Retirement Deed dated 25th September 2019 from M/s Devbhoomi, joint venture by selling its
60% share to Mr Neeraj R. Kochhar. , : :

The above transactions had resulted in profit on sale of investments of Rs. 591.59 Lakhs, which has been disclosed under other income in’
Statement of Profit & Loss. :

-Note - 48A .

Dissolution of Wholly Owned Subsidiary .

M/s Viraj USA, Inc. was dissolved wef January 15, 2020. The company is in the process to complete necessary compliance in this regérd
under FEMA / RBI regulations. '

Note -49

-Exceptional items:

A. Impairment of property, plant and equipment:

In the previous year, one of subsidiary company i.e. Sino Global Investment Limited has carried out a review of the recoverable amount of
its property, plant and equitments and recognised impairment loss of Rs. 1,114.19 Lakhs. . '

B. Impairment testing of goodwill: .
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill relating to continuing business segments has been allocated to cash generating units.
Goodwill recognised in the books relates to S C Tubinox S.A. Romania ’

, Rs. In lakhs|
Goodwill Recognised , , _ ‘ . 1,640.09
Less: Impairment recognised ' ' -
Net Goodwill 1,640.09

Goodwil is tested for irhpair_ment on annual basis and wherever there is an indication that recoverable amount of cash generation is less
than its carrying amount based on economic conditions. The recoverable amount is determined based.on higher of value in use and fair
value less cost to sell. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to S € Tubinox S. A. representing lowest level within the
Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose. The above impairment is attributable to economic slow down.

Note -50

" The Group has entered into the license agreement dated 4 June 2010 with Maharashtra industrial. Development Corporation to take on
Jlease Plot No. G-1/4 of land at Tarapur Industrial Area ‘admeasuring 32,000 sq. mtrs. for which lease deed‘in pending amounting to Rs .
1219.20 Lakhs. : :

The Company has entered into the license agreement dated October 27th, 2016 with Maharashtra"lndustrial Development Corporation to
take on lease Plot No. 5-18/2 of land at Tarapur Industrial Area admeasuring 13,000 sq. mtrs. for which lease deed in pending amounting to
Rs 1390 Lakhs, : '

Note - 51 . : .
For the financial year ended March 312020, the impact of pandemic COVID 19 on company's operations and financials was not significant.
The company is engaged in ‘manufacturing of Stainless Steel engineering products and also having continuous process plant. The operations
in 1st quarter of FY-21 were irregular and the company focused to absorb fixed overheads to maximum extent. The Company estimates
“minimum adverse impact on its business, operations, financials, cash flow, liquidity or ability to serve its financial obligations. However, the
full extent to which the pandemic will impact the future financial results of the Company will depend on tpcoming developments, which afe
highly uncertain including any new information concerning the severity: of the pandemic. Management will continue to monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions and the impact thereof on the Company, if any. '

Note - 52 _ .
in the opinion of the mahagement, the current asset; loan and advances and current liabilities are approximately of the value stated, if

realised/ paid in ordinary course of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and is not in excess of amounts considered
reasonably necessary. . . .
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Note - 53

Previous years figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached.
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